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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Shareholders of
OPDE Investment Espafia, S L

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statemenis of Grupo OPDE Investment Espafna, SL and
subsidiary companies, compnsing the conschdated balance sheet at 31 December 2014, the consolidated
income statement, the statement of consohdated changes in equity, the statement of consolidated cash
flow and notes to the financial statements for the year then ended

Governing Body's Responsbility for the Financial Statements

The Parent Company’s Governing Body 1s responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, such that they present a farr view of consolidated equity, the financial position
and the consohdated results of OPDE Investment Espafa, S L and subsidianes, in accordance with the
regulatory framework for financial information applicable to the Group in Spain, which 1s descnbed 1in Note
3 1 of the notes accompanying the financial statements, and for such internal control as they determine
necessary 10 enable the preparation of the inancial statements free from matenal misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error

Auditor’s Responsibility

Cur responsibility 1s to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audit We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Spanish regulatory standards for account auditing Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtan
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from matenal
misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures In
the financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error
In making those nsk assessments, the auditor considers internal cantrol relevant to the entity’s preparation
and farr presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal contro! An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estmates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffictent and appropnate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present farrly, in all matenal aspects,
the consohdated equity and financial position of OPDE Investment Espafia, SL and subsidiaries at 31
December 2014, as do the consolidated results and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended,
pursuant to the regulatory framework for financial information applied, and in particular, the accounting
standards and cnteria therein

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The accompanying annual report of the Company for 2014 contains the explanations which the Governing
Body of the Company consider appropriate regarding the position of OPDE Investment Espana, S L and
subsidiary companies , the evolutien of business and other matiers, but 1s not an integral part of the
consolidated financial statements We have venfied that the accounting information in the consolidated
management report 15 consistent with that contained in the consolidated financial statements for 2014 Our
work as auditors 1s confined to checking the consolidate management report within the aforementioned
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scope, and does not include a review of any other information other than that drawn from the accounting
records of the Group

DELOITTE

Ignacio Lézaun Echevarmn

Apnl 30, 2015
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OPDE Investment Espafia, S.L. and Substdiaries

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR 2014 (NOTES 1,2 & 4)

{Thousands of Euros)

Notes Year Year
2014 2013 (%)

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Net revenue Notes 21 & 24 4 74 51€ 55115
Sales 69049 48 700
Rendening of services 5467 6415
Changes n inverntories of finished goods and wark in progress (5.260) 7839
In-house work on assets s 54
Procurements and consumables {42 129) {36 378)
Consumption of goods purchased for resale Note 21 2 (17 782} (20 677)
Consumption of raw matenals and ather consumable matenzls Note 212 (896) (11 149}
Subcontracted work {23 430) (5 243)
Impairment of goods for resale, raw materials and other consumables Note 15 21 691
Other operating income 3403 1318
Non-cere income and sundry income 3395 1274
Operating granis reieased to income dunng the year 8 44
Personnel Costs Note 213 {4 570) (5 233)
Wages, salanes and similar remuneration {3 789) (3 950)
Social secunty expense (758) (1 083)
Severance payments (23) {220)
Other operating expensa Note 21 4 {9 475) {11 205}
External services {7217) {8 354)
Taxes (1232) {1253)
Losses, imparments and changes In trade provisions Notes 11 2 & 17 (101) {1608)
Other operating expensea (925) 10
Deprecration and amortisation charge Notes 7 & 8 {5930) (6 641)
Release of non-financlal capital grants and others 14
Provislon excess 818 {125)
Impairment and result on flxed asset disposals Notes 7 & 8 (145) 17 312
Impairment and losses {1689} (963)
Results on disposals and other 24 18275
OPERATING RESULT 11579 22070
Financial income 188 553
From marketable secunties and other financial iInstruments Note 111 188 563

- From third parties 188 553
Financial expense {6 215) (7127)
Payables to third parties Notes 13 & 18 {6131} {7 D4E)
For updatng of provisions (84) 81
Exchange differences 1044 (234)
Impairment and result on disposals of financial Instruments 2094 (39)
Imparment and losses 8 (233)
Results on disposals and other Notes 2.c & 11 2086 194
FINANCIAL RESULT {2.889) {6 847)
RESULT BEFORE TAX 8 680 15223
Income tax Note 20 {3 006) {5321)
RESULT FOR THE YEAR FOR CONTINUING OPERATICNS 5684 9 902
CONSOLIDATED RESULT FOR THE YEAR 5 684 g 902
Rasult attnibutable to the parent company 5740 10109
Result attributable to minarity interests {56) (207)

{*} Included solely for comparative purpases (Note 3 5)

Notes 1 to 24 1n the consolidated notes and the accompanying annexes are an integrat part of the consolidated income statemant at year end 2014
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OPDE Investment Espaiia, S L and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLO EME OR 201 02013 &4
{Thesands of Euros}

Notes Year Year
2014 2013 ()
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (I} 5498 {5 789)
Resuli for the year befors tax 8690 15223
Adjustments for 9388 {5 554)

Depreciation rnd amorisation charge Notes 7 &8 5930 5641

Impairment 201 2113

Changes in provisions Nota 17 293 {27186}

Reloase of grants (9} (44)

on gnition and dispesals ol equity Instruments (2094)

Gansflesses on derecognlition and disposals of lixed assets Note 25 5 {24) {18 275},
- Finaneial income {188} (553)

Finarclal expensa 613 T 048

- Exchange dilterencas {1044) 234
Changea in working caplital (5 670) {9 357
- Inventories Note 15 6436 {5 823}
- Trade and cther recer ables (12 283} {249)

Loans 1o Group cempanies and associates {471} 82

Other currant assats 533 13 697

Teade and sthar payablas 2628 {15 BO2Y|

Payebles to Group corpanias and assoclales {2148)

Other current llabliies (368} 9171

Other non current assets and llabliitles {16 362)

Changss in the consofidation scope 5929
Other cash flows from operating aclivities {6 908)! {6 101)|

Interast pald {6001) {6 624)

interest racolved 188 -

Receivad (paid) income tax 768} 1072

Other collections (payments) for provisions Nota 17 (327) {549)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES {11} W77 {2 06g)
Payments due to Investment {6 549} {2.202)

intangble assels Nota 7 {1 898) (504)

Property ptant and equpment Note & a79) {1 252)

Other financlal assets Note 11 1 {3772) (346)
Collections on divestments 17 286 142

Intangblo asseis 141 -

Property plant and equpmant 28 -

Other imancial assets Note 13 1 17119 142
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES {llT) (14 246} (2.902)
Praceads and paymants relating to flnancial llabliity Insiruments {11 446} {2772)

Issue of

Bank borrowings Nete 181 5193 1182
Ci 18 from Group ¢t and L @
Repayment and amertisation of
Bank borrowings Note 18 {15 747) {3 954).
Other barrowings {938} -
Paymenis of dividends and remunaration of other equity nstrumants (2.800) {130

Drviderds Note 16 2 {2 800) IIEO)L
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE VARIATION (IV) 1044
NET INCREASE/DECREASE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (lell+1lil+1V) 1032 {10 751)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 5320 200N
Exit from consolidation scope dug 10 spin off {Note 1) (379)

Cash and cash equivalents al year end 11 674 9 320

{ ) Includad solely for caomparative purpeses (Note 3 §)

Notes 1 to 24 in the consolidated notes and the accompanytng annexes are an wtegrat part of the cash flow statemants fer 2014




Grupo Opde

OPDE Investment Espaifia, S.L.
and Subsidiaries

Notes to the consolidated financtal statements for the year ended 31 December 2014

Corporate purpose and activity

OPDE investment Espana, S L, (hereinafter the Company) was incorporated on 20 January 2005 under the
name Otras Producciones de Energia, SL (OPDE, SL) On 3 July 2008 Otras Producciones de Energia,
S L changed its name to OPDE investment Esparia, S L

On that date a capital increase was executed in the investee, Otras Producciones de Energia Fotovoltaica,
S L through the contribution of a line of business by the company such that OPDE Investment Espafia, S L
became a holding company with nferests in vanous group companies and assoctates while Otras
Producciones de Energia Fotovoltaica, SL continued to carry out the activities connected with the
development of solar parks which until that tme had been carned out by OPDE, S L The contribution was
covered by the Special Regime for mergers, splits, asset contnbutions and share exchanges contained in
Prowvincial Law 24/1996 on Corporate Income Tax For detalled information of the process see the Notes for
the consolidated annual accounts for year end 2008

As a result of the contribution of the "solar plant development, marketing, installation, sale and mantenance”
business to Otras Producciones de Energia Fotovoltaica, S L the Company's corporate purpose mamnly
consists of

- The subscription, acquisthion, transfer, management, adminustration, holding and enjoyment of stocks
and shares representing an interest in companies resident and not resident in Spanish terntory and
financial assets i general, fixed or vanable income, mvolving any securities, and the assignment to
third parties of equity, Interests in the equity of other companies and shares in the capital or assets of
collective investment undeniakings, whether listed or other in organised markets, without carrying out
actvittes typical of collective investment undertakings

- Sale of energy to electricity companies
its registered office for mercantile and tax purposes I1s located in Fustifana (Navarra)

At the 2014 and 2013 year end OPDE Investment Espafa SL 1s the parent of a group (heremaiter the
Group), made up of the subsidianes and associates detalled in Annex | and |l respectively

A breakdown by segment and the most significant changes i the consolidation scope are detalled in Notes
24 4 and 2 c respectively

For the purposes of prepanng the consolidated annual accounts, a group Is understood to exist when the
parent company has one or more subsidianes, 1 @ companies controlled direcily or indirectly The principles
applied In the preparation of the Group's consohdated annual accounts, together with the consolidation
scope, are set out m Notes 2and 5

The consolidated annual accounts of the OPDE group for 2014 were presented by the Directors at the Board
of Director’s Meeting held on March 31, 2015
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The consolidated annual accounts of the OPDE Group for 2013 were presented by the Direclors at the
Board of Directors Meeting held on March 31, 2014 and approved at the General Shareholders Meeting for
OPDE Investment Espafia, S L held on June 30, 2014 and registered with the Navarre Companies House

Spin off of Proyectos Integrales Solares, S L

On June 30, 2014 at the Extraordinary General Meeting the shareholders unamimously approved the partal
spin off of a part of their equity in favor of the trading company, Photovoltaic Global Distribution, S L, which
was constituted simultanecusly and as a consequence of the said partial spin-off The corporate address of
said company 1s 1n In Fustiiana {Navarre) In making a block purchase of all the capital shares sad
company became the owner of Proyectos Integrales Solares, SL (Single Shareholder Company) This
agreement was published in the Official Bulletin n136 of Companies House on July 21, 2014 and became a
public deed on October 13, 2014 wihich was later rectified and recorded as a public document on January
13, 2015 Subsequently, on January 16, 2015 the agreement was registered in Companies House

The main aspects of the approved draft terms of division are as follows
1 Procedure

The partial spin-off operation consists in separating the related assets and habilities to the newly set up
company {which i1s imitially held in the same percentages by the same shargholders — note 16}, Photovoltaic
Global Distribution, S L, regarding the holding of 100% of the share capital of Proyectos Integrales Solares,
SLU

As the beneficiary company of the spin-off 1s a imited liability company, and additionally, in accordance with
the terms of article 78 bis of the Act 3/2009 of Apnl 3, regarding structural modifications of trading
companies (according to which, the shares in the new company will be attributed to the shareholders of the
company which proportionately splits ofi the shares they hold in the caprtal of the spin-off company) there 1s
no obligation for the spin off to be subject to any independent expert report

On March 13, 2015 the General Shareholders Meeting of Photovoltaic Global Distribution, S L approved a
capital increase due to the entry of a new Shareholder This subsequently became a public document on
March 28, 2015

In addition, as the beneficiary company of the spin-off 1s a imited habiity company, a Directors report
regarding the draft terms of division i1s not required

2 Spin-off balance sheet

The spin-oft balance sheet 1s 2013 year end {approved at the General Sharehaolders Meeting on June 30,
2014)
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3 Accounting effect of the spin-off

As a consequence of the entry of a new shareholder in the capital of the beneficiary company, the ownership
structure and the taking of decisions has changed, such that, from an accounting point of view, the date for
the spin-off for accounting purposes Is not that from the beginning of the year, bul that from the date at
which the approved draft terms of division became a public deed, 1 e October 13, 2014

Thus, the Group has integrated the results of the sub-group Pronso up to October 13, 2014 These are as
follows

From1114to
Losses and galns 13102014

Sales 13 874
Rendenng of services 257
Procurements and supplies (12 825)
Other operating income 27
Personnel expense (550)
QOther operating expense {1 023)
Depreciation of plant, property and equipment (41)
Provisions excess 14
impairment and result on disposals of property, plant and equipment 3
Qther income / expense 33
QPERATING RESULT {231
Financial Income 94
Financial expense (192}
Exchange differences 86
Impairment and result on disposal of financial nstruments 26
FINANCIAL RESULT 14
PRE-TAX RESULT (217)
Corporate tncome tax (63}
RESULT FOR THE YEAR {280)

4 Exchange ratio and procedure

As a consequence of this operation, the shareholders of the partally spun-off trading company will receive a
number of shares proportional to the shares which they hold in the company which 1s being divided 1n lieu of
an economic transfer

The shareholders in the separated company will receive a number of shares in the beneficiary company
equivalent to dwiding by four the number of shares they hold in the dvided company The exchange ratio will
not involve any payment to the shareholders cf the spin-off The exchange rate 1s based on the real value of
the economic unit of the divided company, and taking into account the real value of its respective assets and
labites No complementary payments of any kind are foreseen
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5 Assets and habilities which will be transferred 1o the beneficiary company of the spin-off

Opde Invesiment, S L dvides the economic unit made up of the shareholding it holds in the share capital of
Proyectos Integrales Solares, S L U

The asset and hability tems which are transferred from the parent company of the Group to the beneficiary
company are the following

Asset Thousands Liability Thousands
of euros of euros
Long-term investment i Group
companies and associates 1200 |Voluntary reserves (Note 16) 1200
Total 1.200 |Total 1 200
6 Spin-off tax regime

The parhial spin-off operation has been taxed under the Tax Regime laid out in Chapter IX of Title IX of
Regional Act 2411996 of December 30, regarding corporate income tax In the Region of Navarre As such,
the Navarre Tax Authonties have received the appropriate information

Agreement reached with Rios & Enrique, 5 L. 1n 2013

On June 19, 2013, OPDE Investment Espafia, S L and its pariners signed an agreement with the minority
shareholder, Rios & Enngue, S L for the acquistion as treasury shares of its shares in OPDE Investment,
SL As payment for the shares, the Group transferred the ownership to Rios & Ennque, SL of the solar
parks Almaraz XXXV, S L U, Ribaforada 6, Srl, Piemonte Eguzki 1, Srl and Piemonte Eguzki 10, Srl
and certain properties, offseting in addmon the recewvable and payable balances which were held between
both groups

The following operations were undertaken to execute the agreement reached

- On.June 19, 2013 at the Genera! Shareholders Meeting of OPDE Investment Espafia, St it was
agreed to acquire the shares held at that tme by Rios & Ennique, SL, and for therr immediate
amortization through a reduction in share capital

- OnJune 19, 2013, the Group acquired as treasury shares, the share capital held by Rios & Ennque
at that time at a price of EUR 26 556 thousand, approximately, and thus generated a payable
amount for said total to Rios & Ennque, S L

- OnJune 19, 2013, the Group notanzed by publc deed, the agreement for the reduction in share
capital for the purpose of redeeming the 89 356 shares at a par value of 10 euros which it holds as
treasury shares {Note 16}

As a consequence, the Group reduced its share capital by EUR 894 thousand The difference
between the acquisition pnce and the reducton in share capital, (EUR 25662 thousand) was
charged under “Reserves” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets (Note 16)

- Rio & Ennque, S L purchased from the Group 100% of the assets and liabilties of
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Sale Price
Thosands of | Gross Capatal
Parent Company Company Sold Euros Gain

(Notes 8 & 21 5)
OPDE Investment, SL | Ribaforada 6,511 5757 1115
QPDE Investment, SL | Piemonte Eguzki1,5r1 5664 5040
OPDE Investment, S L | Piemonte Eguzki1 10,571 6120 2 906

Otras Producciones Almaraz Fotovoltaica 35,
Industriales, SL U™ SLU 12 047 9 476
Total 29 588 18.537

* OPDE !nvesiment, S L holds 100% of the share capial of Otras Producciones Industriales, S LU (Annex)

Price payment was carried out through the partial compensation of the payable amount generated
by the treasury shares purchase

in addibon, Rios & Ennque, S L purchased a property from the Group for EUR 1 541 thousand As
a conseguence the Group recorded a capital gain of EUR 67 thousand (Note 21 5) The collection
of this payment was carnied out through the partial ofisetting of payable amounts the Group held
with Rios & Enngue, S L

As a consequence of this sale, the Group recorded a gross capital gain for EUR 18 537 thousand
under the item “Impaiment and results on fixed asset disposals — Results on disposals and others”
in the accompanying consolidated income statement The associated costs for this operation
lotalled EUR 1 660 thousand {(Note 21 5)

- The recevable and payable amounts held between the Greup and Rios & Enrnque, S1 were
offset by EUR 4 572 thousand

Sector regulation in Spamn

The electricity generation activity of the Company 1s regulated by electricity sector Law 413/2014, of June §,
which came into force on June 10, 2014 as well as the regulatory provisions covered by said iaw

On 28 May 2007, Royal Decree 661/2007 was published, which regulates energy production activity covered
by the Special Regime Subseguently, cn 26 September, 2008, Royal Decree 1578/2008 was published,
regarding remuneration in the activity of electrical energy production through solar photovoltaic technology
for instaltations subsequent to the remuneration deadline of the Royal Decree 661/2007, of 25 May 2007

On 23 November 2010, the Royal Decree 1565/2010 of November 19 was published, which regulated and
modified certamn aspects related to the actwvity of electrical energy production covered by the Special
Regime This Royal Decree considers a premiurn reduction of between 5% and 45% for new projects which
enter in the first pre-allocations called after the coming into being of the Royal Decree, as well as abolishing
the option of receiving the regulated tanff from the 26th year onwards

In addition, on 24 December 2010, the Royal Decree 14/2010 of 23 December was published, intreducing
urgent measures for the adjustment of the tanff deficit in the electrical sector This Royal Decree established
a limit in the workang equivalent hours for photovoltaic instaliations which have the nght to the receiving of a
premium and the introduction of a toll of 0 5€/MWh in order for the special regime to contnbute to the
maintenance and development of the transport and distnbution network

The Sustainable Economy Law (Lay 2/2011) extended the number of years with nghts to a premium tanff
from 25 years to 30 years for those facilities covered by the tanff regme from the Royal Decree 661/2007
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On 28 January, 2012 the Official State Bulletin was published which brought into effect Royal Decree — Law
1/2012 (RDL 1/2012), which suspended pre-allocation remuneration processes and abolished economic
incentives for new electnc energy installattions based on cogeneration, renewable energy sources and
waste

In 2014 and 2013 a senes of regulatory modifications have come into effect which has substantally altered
the business of the Group, amongst which the following are highlighted

e On 27 December, 2012, Law 15/2012 was pubhshed i the Official State Bulletin, regarding
sustainable energy measures This law brought into effect a new tax on the production of electncity,
amounting to 7% of the sales of electncal energy of all producers regardless of the type of energy
or form of payment This law came into effect on January 1, 2013

+  On February 2, 2013 the Royal Decree 2/2013 of February 1 was published, regarding urgent
measures for the electrical system and financial sector This legal document states that from 2013
onwards, the CP} to be used to update premiums and tanffs will be the underlying CPl, which
excludes fresh food and energy preducts from flat taxes In addmon, all special regime technology
is gathered under a single remuneration formula it establishes that this remuneration 1s to be
carried out under the regulated tanff formula, except when the holder of the facilty decides to
receive only the market price {without premuum} Therefore, the cption of selling the electncity in the
electric enargy production market at market price and receving a vanable premium based on the
market price 1s elmmnated This Royal Decree came into force the day after its publication

»  On July 14, 2013, Royal Decree-Law 9/2013 came into force, which adopted urgent measures to
guarantee the financial stabiity of the electncal system This Royal Decree-Law set up the
principles on which the legal regulations will be based on regarding the: legal and economic regime
applicable to electrical energy production facilities using renewable, cogeneration and wasle energy
sources, and established a series of mechanisms In virtue of which, and in accordance with the
subsequent development of this regulation, certain complementary remunerations are established
for facilities of this nature in order to guarantee a reasonable operational profitabiity before tax on
the investment This Royal Decree, amongst other 1ssues, replaces the special regime 1n place up
to the time, and in particular and exphaitly the Royal Decree 661/2007, of May 25, which regulates
elecirical energy production actmity under special regime and Royal Decree 1578/2008 regarding
remuneration n the activity of electrical energy production through solar photovoltaic technology tor
faciities subsequent 1o the remunerabion deadline of the Royal Decree 661/2007, of May 25

In 2014 a regulatory development to Royal Decree-law 9/2013 has been approved, which has been formalized
in the approval of Royal Decree 413/2014, which regulates and defines the new legal and economic model,
and In the Ministerial Order IET/1045/2014 of June 18, which sets out the remuneration parameters for the
facities applicable by type to determine the specific retnbution The information 1s 1n more detail as follows

« OnJune 6, 2014 Royal Decree 413/2014 was approved, which regulates the actwity of electncal
energy production using renewable, cogeneraton and waste energy sources, and includes the
following matters amongst others

- The remuneration of electncal energy production using renewable energy sources 1s set
according to the market price plus a specific remuneration

- The spechic remungration 1s made up of an investment compensation (based on the
power nstalled) and an operating compensation {based on the production), albeit this
remuneration will be different for each generator depending on the energy used and the
charactenstics of each facility type
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- The operating remuneration values will be revised annually for faciiies whose operating
costs essentially depend on the price of fuel, every three years investment remuneration
estimates may be revised for facities by the market pnce of energy sale, as well as
directly related remuneration parameters, and every six years the value upon which
reasonable profitability of the facilittes 1s based will be revised Once recorded, under no
circumstances may the two following parameters be revised the regutatory useful life and
the standard value of the initial investment of a facility

- To calculate the specific remuneration, an estimate 1s made of the standard income from
the sale of the generated energy, valued at the price (estimated) of the production market
Given that there may be differences between the estimated market price and the final
price, article 22 of RD 413/2014 establishes an adjustment mechanism for the specific
remuneration which takes into consideration market pnce adjustmenis At the end of the
regulatory useful Ife of a facility or the situation in which the specific remuneration regime
15 lost, the positive and negative balances of the adjusiment values for dewiation from
market price will be settled by the entity in charge of the liquidation in the six iquidations
subsequent to the ending of the regulatory useful iife of the faclity or the date of its
renunciation

e On June 20, 2014 the Ministenal Order 1ET/1045/2014 of June 16 was published, which approved
the remuneration parameters for facility types apphicable to certain electrical energy production
facliles using renewable, cogeneration and waste energy sources This order introduced the
following points

- A classification of facility types 1s set up according to the technology, power installed, age,
electnc system and other segments required for the remuneration regime to be applied
Each group and sub-group of facilities corresponds to a set of instatlation types, to which
an individualized code 1s assigned Annexes | and IV of the order define the installation
types ans assign a total of 2,071 numenc codes Each code Is assigned with an annual
investment and operating remuneraton

- The years subject to this method of remuneration are 2013 (from July 14 to December 31,
2013, Annex ll 1), 2014, 2015 y 2016 {(Annex Il 2)

- The most relevant parameters are Investment remuneration for the power output,
operating remuneraton, the regulatory useful ife, the number of hours of rmimmum
operating, the operating threshold and the number of hours of maximum operating for
operating remuneration purposes

Sector regulation in ltaly

The regulatory framework which addresses both the procedures required as well as the operating of and
management of photovoltaic plants i ltaly 15 pnncipally based on "Decree 387" from 2003, which 18 apphed
in laly to the European Directive 2001/77/CE The Directive introduced the legal framework and general
rules, as well as establishing energy production regimes based on renewable sources (n the ltalan electneity
network The Decree set a fixed premium system on rates for a penod of 20 years, and made support and
promotion of energy production based on renewable sources a prionty by

- Smphfying and unifying authonzation procedures, through the introducton of deadlnes and
specific and immovable laws

- Introducing economic incentives

- Granting pnornity of access to the national gnd
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Subsequently, the ltalian Government approved, via Ministerial Decree, the decree known as "Nuove Conto
Energia”, which specifically regulated photovoltaic plants and came into being on February 19, 2007 This
Decree stipulated the prices for the income obtained from the premium rate system in accordance with the
decree, three categanes of photovoltaic plants were defined Non-integrated {basically, ground - based),
parhally integrated, and integrated (basically on roofs, greenhouses and car parks)

Due to the rapid expansidn of the ltaban Market, on August 6, 2010, the Mimistries of Environment and
Finance passed a Ministerial Decree which established new rates applicable to the years 2011-2013 This
measure, named “3? Conto Energra” came into effect on January 1, 2011

In March 2011, the itahan Government enacted the Legislative Decree 28/2011 (also named “Renewables
Decree), which granted the Ministry of Finance the power to modify the system of incentives, and finahzed
the process by approving the Ministenial Decree of May 5, 2011 named "4? Conto Energia”

The “4® Conto Energia" established a system of varying incentives based on the type and size of
photovoltaic plants

The Ministenal Decree of July 5, 2013 published the *5 Conto Energia” which updated the incentives set by
the Energy Systems Management for the photovoltaic sector in accordance with the real costs of
photovoltaic faciibes

In 2013 the following regulatory changes were introduced

- Ministerial Decree N® 68 published on June 21, 2013 extended the application of the “Robin Hood
Tax" to energy producers whose sales exceeded EUR 3 million and whose pre-tax profits exceeded
EUR 300 thousand This tax increases the “Imposta sul Reddito delle Societa (IRES)” tax by 6 5%

- OndJuly 1, 2013 the Ministenial Decree “5 Conto Energia” of July 5, 2012 ceased to be applied The
date en which it ceased to be applied marked the deadline for new photovoltaic projects applying
for the electricity production ncenlives in accordance with the parameters set out by this Ministenal
Decree

- On December 20, 2013 a resolution named “Agenzia delle Entrate” was published, a ruling which
slated that amortization costs which exceed 4% per annum will not be deductible The Group
amortizes its photovoltaic facilihies over 25 years

- In 2013, the 2014 Stability Law was approved, through which the “Imposta Municipale Propna” 1s
deductible in the “IRES” by 30% and 20% for 2013 and subsequent years respectively

In 2014 the ltalan Parliament approved the Decree Law n® 91 of June 24, with Law n?116 of August 11,
2014, which affects the incentives guaranteed to photovoltaic compames, offering other incentive options

“This Law sets out that photoveltaic companies must choose the new incentive model! prior to November 30,
2014 The options established by the Law are the following

- Extenston of the useful life of the photovoltarc park with a tanff reduction of between 17% and 25%

- Modifivation of the matunty dates of accounts receivable without modifying the useful life

- Reduction of Income between 6% and 8% without madifying the useful ke of the park This option
will be designated by default if the company still has not made a decision by November 30, 2014
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The Directors have considered the third option and such have included it in the impairment tests conducted

Substidiaries, asscciates and multi-group companies

a) Subsidiaries

Consolidation has been carred out by applying the fully conselidated method to all subsidianes, which
are those In which the Group exercises or may exercise control either directly or indirectly, which 1s
understood as the power to manage the financial and operating policy of a company to obtain economic
beneht from its activiies This circumstance is generally, though not solely, demonstrated by having
direct or iIndirect ownership of 50% or more of the voting rights of the company |n accordance with part
b) of these Notes, the Parent company consolidates by the equity method those companies In which 1t
holds 50% of the voting nights as it 1s understood that this percentage grants the Parent company
(directly or indirectly), significant influence, and not centrol, In accordance with the defimiion given by the
Royal Decree 1158/2010 relating to the Rules for the presentation of Consolidated Annual Accounis
(Note 3 1)

The capital interest of minonty shareholders in consolidated subsidiaries” equity and results 1s presented
under the tem “Minonty interests” under “Equity” in the consolidated balance sheet and in “Result
attributable to minonty interests” in the consohdated results statement respectively

Annex 1 of these notes detals the subsidianes ncluded in the consolidation scope, indicating
percentages held (direct plus indirect) All of them have the same financial year as the Group those
subsidiaries which are within the consolidation scope and have not been audied have been revised with
respect to the consolidation scope by the chief auditor

Regarding the subsicdiaries In England, the Group s Board of Directors have expressed that 1t 1s therr
intention to qualfy for audit exemption through secton 479A of the Companies Act 2006 The
subsidiaries benefitting from this exemption are Epsilon Solar Limited, lota Solar Limited, Kappa Solar
Limited, Lambda Solar Limited, Alpha Selar Limited, Gamma Solar Limited, Delta Solar Limited, Omega
Solar Limited, Omicron Solar Limited, Sigma Solar Limited, Tau Solar Limited and Theta Solar Limited

b) Jointly held and associate companies

Jointly-held companies are those which constitute a joint business and are cansolidated by applying the
proportional consolidation method, which consists of the mclusion in the consolidated annual accounts of
the portion of assets, llabilities, expense and income of these companies which corresponds to the
percentage of its equity which 15 owned by the Group A joint business i1s understood te be one in which
there 1s jaint control together with other parties, which anses when a statutory or contractual agreement
exists under which the strategic decisions of the activities, both financial and operational, require the
unanimous consent of the parhes sharing control At year end 2014 and 2013 there are no companies
held by the Group in which there 1s joint control
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Associate companies are those in which significant influence 1s exercised in their management, which 1s
undersiood lo be the power to intervene in financial and operating policy decistons, but without ever
having control or joint control Significant influence in a company s assumed when the interest held i
the company equates to or exceeds 20% Associate companies are registered by applying the equity
method The equity method consists of including a line in the consolidated balance sheet “Long-term
investments n group companies and associates — Equity method” for the value of net assets and
goodwill if there were, relating to the interest held in the associate company The net result every year
corresponding to the percentage held in these companies s recorded in the consolidated results
staternent as “Share In profits (Josses) equity method companies

Annex 1 of these notes details the associate companies included in the consolidation scape All of them
have to the same financial year as the Group

Changes in the consolidation scope

At December 31, 2013 the Group reclassified by recording a credit under the item “Non current assels
held for sale” and a charge under “Non-current related liabilities held for sale”, the assets and liabiities
relating to OPDE Solare, Sr 1, OPDE Pugla, S, and Solare Pugha, Sr1 given that the sale process
which was underway at 2012 year end couldnot be closed {Notes 8, 14 & 25)

In 2014, the parent company has acquired 32% of OPDE Solare, Sri, for EUR 600 thousand (the
remaining 68% 1s owned by OPDE italy, Sr 1} At 31 December, 2014 there 15 an outstanding amount of
EUR 400 thousand recorded under “Sundry payables” in the accompanying balance sheet for 2014

In 2074 and 2013 the Group has not included the 24% share capital it has in Renter Gestiones, SL in
the consolidation scope, as it has insignificant assets, labilites and operations At the end of 2014 the
total amount of assets, equity and net result {losses) of this company totalled EUR 300 thousand, EUR 6
thousand and EUR 1 thousand respectively (EUR 488 thousand, 5 thousand and 32 thousand in 2013)

Similarly, in 2014 and 2013 the Group has not included its 100% ownership of OPDE US Corp 1n the
consoldation scope, which at the end of 2014 1s In the process of iguidation In March 2015 the
company has been wound up and the Directors do not expect any disruption caused

In 2014, there has been a spin-off of the Group company Proyecto Solares Integrales, SL U and thus
since Qctober 13, 2014 1t 1s no longer included in the consohdation scope (Note 1)
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In 2013, 4 companies were sold {(Note 1) and 7 companies liquidated The liguidated companies were
promotional companies which did not have any activity The companies are set out in the following table

Reason for
Company scope exit
Piemente Bguzki 1, Sr1 (Note 1) Sale
Piemonte Eguzki 10, Srl (Note 1) Sale
Ribaforada 6, Srl (Note 1) Sale
Almaraz Fotovoltaica 35, Sl (Note 1) Sale
Piemnote Eguzki 9, Srl Liquidation
Genapie 1,51 Liquidation
Ribaforada 4, Sr! Lrquidation
Jomsun, SLU Liguidation
Lindisun, SL U Liquidation
Candisun, SL U Liquidation
Ifusun, SL U Ligumdation

The impact of the sold companies on the consolidated incomne statement for 2013 15 described in notes 1
and215

The impact of the liquidated companies on the accompanying consolidated income stalement is not
sigmificant

d} Going concern

As 1s descnbed in Note 1, the new rulings which have come into effect in the current year have
intreduced significant uncertainty with respect to the development of the electncal sectar, and thus also
for the segment for electricity sale amongst cthers (note 24 4) in which the Group acts In accordance
with the rulings approved and the information avallable to date regarding future effects, the Group has
already suffered dunng this current year and n the future will suffer a significant decrease in profitability
and in the expected cash flows of its assets in the segment, which in turn entails, amongst other issues,
a nsk with respect to the Group’s capacity to meet the financial commitments pertaiming to cumrent
financial agreements {both of principal and interest as well as meeting Financial Ratas, with the possible
consequence of early maturty of contracts stemming from these non-compliances) Simitarly, the
remaining activities carnied out by the Group (Note 24 4), are related to the electncity sector and thus are
affected by the aferementioned regulatory changes

The Group’s Directors have assessed the impact of the new regulations on the energy segment and
others 1in which the Group acts, and in particular, as previously mentioned, on the capacity of the Group
to meet its financial commitments and obligations pertaining to financing agreements {Note 18), and has
reached the following conclusions

»  The Group has fully met all its financial commitments pertaining to financing agreements at the date
of presenting the accompanying consolidated financial statements

s The Group will be able to meet any debt servicing until the debts have been fully paid off

s The value of the projects is higher than the amount owed (1 & the expected cash flows from the
projects are greater than the debt servicing due)
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In these circumstances, the Group's Directors have prepared these consolidated financial statements
following the going concern prnciple, due to, as was previously stated, incomphance being improbable
over the next twelve months regarding the financial commitments bome in virtue of current financing
agreements, or for any foreseeable incomphance of financial commitments until the final matunty date of
the financing contracts, It also being improbable that this fact results n any early maturity of financing
agreements

In addition, the Group 1s actively nvolved in projects in other geographical areas which are not affected
by the regulatory changes previously referred to

Basis of presentation of the consolidated annual acgcounts

3.1 Regulatory framework for financial information applicable to the Group

These consolidated annual accounts have been prepared by the Directors of the Parent company in
accordance with the regulatory framework for financial information applicable to the Group as set out In

a) The Code of Commerce and other commercial laws

b) The Regulations for the presentation of Consolidated Annual Accounts approved by Roval Decree
1158/2010, the General Chart of Accounts approved by Royal Decree 1514/2007 and their sector
adaptation

¢) The mandalory rules approved by the Institute of Accountancy and Account Audiing within the
development of the General Chart of Accounts and their complementary rules

d} The remaming Spanish accounting laws to be apphed
3 2 Fair view

These consclidated annual accounts for 2014 have been prepared on the basis of the accounting
records of the Parent Company and the companies which make up the OPDE Group (herewnafter, the
Group — see Annex ) and are presented in accordance with the regulatory framework for financral
information applicable to the company and, i particular, the accounting principles and crteria contamed
Such that they express a true and fair view of equity, the financial situation, the Group results and the
cash flows for the year These consolidated annual accounts have been presented on March 31, 2015
These consolidated annual accounts, which have been presented by the Company Directors will be
submitted for approval at the General Shareholders Meeting, and are expected to be approved without
any modifications and depostted in the Commercial Register of Navarre

3 3 Appheation of non-oblhigatory accounting principles
No non-obligatory accounting principles were applied In addition, the Directors of the Parent Campany
formally prepared these consolidated annual accounts taking into account all the obligatory accounting
prnciples and standards with a significant effect thereon All obligatory accounting principles were
applied

3 4 Key 1ssues relating to the measurement and estimation of uncertainty
in preparing the accompanying consalidated annual accounts estimates were made by the Directors of
the Parent Company n order to measure ceriain assels, llabilities, income, expenses and obligations
reported herein These estimates relate basically to the following

* The useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (Notes 7 and 8)
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¢ The assessment of possible imparment losses on certain assets (Notes 7, 8 and 9)

+ The market value of certain financial instruments (Notes 11, 12 and 13}

» The recoverability of deferred tax assets (Notes 5 12 and 20)

+« The calculation of provisions (Note 17)

+ The estimates for accrued income and expense in 2014 relating to the sale of electnicity {Notes
21 1 and 24 4)

The Directors consider that the regulatory and tax changes regarding photovoltaic parks approved In
2014 {Note 1) constitute an indication in the impairment of the value of these assets In accordance with
the criteria set out in Note 5 6, the Directors have calculated the recoverable value of the photovoltaic
faciities by estmating forecasted cash flows from past experience and based on the best estimates
avallable and reducing them by the weighted average of the cost of the capital, which includes the cost
of the lriabilities and the nsks specific to the assets (Notes 8 & 21 5)

Although these estimates were made on the basis of the best information available at year end 2014 and

2013, events that take place In the future might make 1t necessary to change these estimates (upwards

or downwards) 1n coming years Any changes in accounting estimates would be applied prospectively
35 Comparative information

The information relating to 2013 included in these notes 15 presented for comparative purposes with that
relating to 2014

3 6 Grouping of items

Certain items of the consclidated balance sheet, consolidated income statement, consolidated statement
of equity changes and consoldated statement of cash flows are grouped logether for ease of
understanding, however whenever the amounts involved are matenal , the information 1s broken down in
the related notes to the consolidated financial statements

3.7 Changes in accounting policies

In 2014 there were no significant changes 1in the accounting policies used with respect to the critena
applied in 2013

3 8 Correction of errors and other

In the preparation of the annua! accounts no significant error has been detected which has led to the
correction of the amounts included n the annual accounts for 2013

3 9 Presentational currency

The accompanying consolidated annual accounts are expressed in Euros Given the magnitude of the
figures they are expressed in thousands of Euros unless otherwise stated
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Distribubon of profit

The proposed disiribution of 2014 profit that the Directors of the Parent Company will subrmit for approval by
the shareholders at the Annual General Shareholders Meeting 1s as follows

Thousands
of euros

IDistributable profit-
Profit 1420
1.420

IDistribution-

Voluntary reserves 1 420
1.420

Accounting policies and measurement bases

The pnncipal accounting policies and measurement bases used by the Group in the preparation of the
consolidated annual accounts for 2014, prepared in accordance with the Spanish Chart of Accounts, were
as follows

5 1 Consolidation principles applied

The main consolidation principles applied to the consolidated annual accounts for 2014 and 2013 are as
follows

1

Companies in which there 1s a majorty shareholding, as well as those m which a majonty of votes 1s
held on the Board and effective control 15 exercised (which 1s defined as the power to direct financial
and operating policy with the purpose of obtaining economic profit from its activities), and which have
been consohdated by the fully consclidated method The fully consohdated method requires the
inclusion in the Parent Company’s balance sheet of all the goods, nghts and obligations which make
up the equity of the subsidiary When applicable, the interests of minonty shareholders are recorded
in the ttem "Mmonty Interests” in the consolidated balance sheet, and all the mcome and costs
incurred in the determination of the result of the subsidiary companies are included in the income
statement, once the appropnate homogenizations and ebminations have been camed out The
related information has been included previously

In the preparation of the attached consoldated annual accounts all the important balances and
transactions between consolidated companies have been eliminated

If the situation anses that new companies are incorporated mito the Group during the year, the
attnbution 1n the consolidated income statement of the income and expense 1s mited to the perod
which extends from the date of ncorporation of the company into the Group to year end

In addiion, capital Investments which are held in other companies with which there exists a long-
standing relationship, and in which the interest generally relates to 20% or higher, are measured by
the proportion of equity which the investment represents, after having considered the dividends
recewved and other equity eliiminations

The remaining capital investments are presented tn the accompanying consolidated balance sheet in
accordance with the critenia set out n Note 5 8

Homogenization of the indwidual accounts ncluded in the consolidation scope the differences which
exist between the accounting policies and measurement bases for the companies included in the
consoldation scope are not significant
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7 The financial statements in foreign currency on December 31, 2014 and 2013 have been converied
to Euros by applying the "closing exchange rate” method The net charge or credit resulting from the
conversion s recorded in the item “Translation differences” in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheet

8 In the case of shares being acquired subsequent to the taking of control of a company, the “Minenty
interests” 15 reduced by the corresponding reduction of consolidated equity share, and the
“Consolidation reserves” are adjusted by the difference in value between the amount contributed and
the deduction of the mincnty interest Therefore, goodwill is not present in this type of transaction

9 The interest of minonty sharcholders i equity and in the results of consolidated subsidiary
comparues Is presented in “Minority Interests” under “Equity” in the consolidated balance sheet and
in “Result atinbutable to minonty interests” in the consolidated results statement respectively

10 Associate companies are recorded by the equity method These companies are those m which
significant influence 1s held cver therr management, which s understood to be the power to intervene
in the financial and operating policy of the company, but without exercising control or having joint
contral Significant influence in associate companies is assumed when the interest held equates to or
exceeds 20%

i

—_

The equity method consists of including a line In the consolidated balance sheet “Long-term
nvestments in Group companies and associates — equity method” for the value of the net assets and
goodwill if there were, relating to the inlterest held in the associate company The net result every
year corresponding to the percentage held in these companies Is recorded in the consolidated results
staternent as “Share in profits (losses) equity method companies”

5 2 Goodwill and business combinations

The acquisition of control of a subsidiary by the parent company constitutes a business comhination and
the acquisition methed 1s applied In subsequent consolidations, the elimination of the investment-equity
of the subsidiary comparues will be done generally based on the values resulting from the application of
the acqusition method on the date of the acguisition of control The application methed 1s described as
follows

Business combinations are registered by applying the acquisition method for which the acquisition date
1s determined and the combination cost is calculated Acguired identifiable assets and habilities assumed
are recorded at fair value on the date of acquisition

Goodwill or the negatve difference of the combination 1s determined by the difference between the fair
values of the assets acquired and the habiliies assumed, and the cost of the combination on the date of
acquisition

The cost of the combination 18 determined by the aggregation of
—  The far values of the transferred assets, the labilites incurred or assumed and the eguity
instruments issued on the date of acquisition

—  The farr value of any contingency amount which depends on future events or compliance with
certain condiftons

Expense entalled i the 1ssuing of equity instruments or financial habiliies in exchange for the acquired
elernents 1s not included In the cost of the combinatien
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Similarly, since January 1, 2010, fees paid to legal advisors or other professionals who intervene in the
combination or internally generated expense are not included in the cost of the combination These
amounts are attributed directly to the financial statement

If the business combination 1s carned out 1n stages, such that an investment exists previous to the date
of acquisiion (the date of assuming control), the goodwill or negative difference 1s obtamned from the
difference between

- The cost of the business combination, plus the farr value on the date of acquisiion of any
previous investment in the acquired company by the acquinng company, and,

— The value of the dentifiable assets acquired less the value of the labilibes assumed, in
accordance with the critena previously mentioned

Any profit or loss which anses from far value measurement on the date of assuming control, from the
previous mvestment in the acquired company 15 recorded In the income statement If the investment in
the acquired company had been previously measured at fair value, any pending adjustments to the profit
for the year are transferred to the income statement Furthermore, the cost of the business combination
1s assumed to be the best reference when estimating the fair value of any previous investment on the
date of acquisition

In the exceptional circumstance that a negative difference anses in the business combination, then this i1s
recorded in the income statement as an income

If the measurement processes required to apply the acquisition method for a business combination have
not concluded at the year end for the year in which the combination occurred, the registration i1s
considered provisional, and the provisional values can be adjusted n the time penod required to obtain
the required information providing that such penod does not exceed 1 year The effects of the
adjustments carried out in this period are recorded retrospectively, and comparative information s
modified if required

Subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent amount are adjusted against resuits, except when
the amount has been classified as equity, in which case the subsequent changes in its fair value are not
recognised

The goodwiil generated in the consohdation represents the excess cost of the acquisition with respect to
the Group interest in the far value of the identifiable assets and habilites of a subsidiary company or
jointly held entity on the acquisition date

The positive differences between the cost of the share capital in the consolidated entities with respect to
the corresponding book values acquired, adjusted on the date of the first consolidation, are recorded as
follows

1 If they are attnbutable to specific equity elements of the acquired companies, increasing the value of
the assets (or reducing habilities) for those whose market value are supertor (infencr) to the net
carrying values which figure in the balance sheets and whose accounting cntena 1s simiar to the
assets {labiities) of the Group amortization, accruals, etc

2 If they are attrbutable to specific intangible assets, and are explicitly recognized in the consolidated
balance sheet providing that their fair value on the acquisition date can be reliably determined

3 The remaming differences are registered as goodwill, which are assigned to one or more specific
cash generating units




17

A
opde

Grupo Opde

Goodwill 1s only registered when 1t 1s has been acquired for good and valuable consideration, and thus
represents advance payments made by the acquiring entity for the future economic benefits of the assets
of the acquired company , which are not indwvidual 1n nature and are separately dentifiable and
recognizable

Goodwill values are mamntained at their acquisihon cost At the end of the accounting year, eshmates are
made of their value to ascertain if there has been any impairment which reduces their recoverable value
to below the net cost recorded I such cases anse imely reorganization occurs by using a contribution to
the term “Impairment and results on disposals of fully consqlidated companies — equity method” n the
consolidated income statement

If any impairment arose related to goodwill it 1s not subsequently reversed

At the time of disposal of any subsidiary company the amount attnbutable to goodwill 15 inclided in the
determination of the profits and losses resulting from the disposal

If subsequent to the attarung of control there are any sales operations or purchases of shares in a
subsidiary without losing control, the impact of these transactions s included in equity and the
consolidation goodwill amount 1s not modified

5 3 intangible assels

As a general rule, Intangible assets are recogrized initially at acquisition price or production cost and are
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated amortization
losses These assets are amorhised over the years of their useful hife

Research and development expenditure

The Group recogmzes research expendilure as an expense In the year 1in which 1t is incurred
Development expenditure 1s mainly based on the cost of personnel assigned to the Research and
Development Department, and the preduction costs relating to trials necessary in order to obtan fresh
knowledge regarding the development of new producls or processes or significantly improve existing
ones, including the necessary production costs entaled in the creation of non-marketable prototypes
Development expenditure 1s capitalized at the moment the following condibons are met

= its specifically itermized by project and the related costs can be clearly identifled

e There are sound reasons to foresee the technical success and the economic and commercial
profitability of the related projects

The Group’s work on 1ts own assets Is recognized at its accumulated cost resulting from adding internal
costs to external costs, based on the consumption of own materials, direct labor costs incurred and
general manufactunng costs which are calculated according to absorption rates similar to those applied
for purposes of invenlory measurement

Assets generated thus so are depreciated by applying a straight line method over 5 years which 1s their
estmated useful life

If doubts anse as to the techmical success or economic profitability of the Project, the amounts
capitalized are recognized directly in profit or loss
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Patents, icenses, trademarks and similar

Patents and concessions are carried under assets at cost less accumulated amortisation and the
accumulated amount of recognized value adjustments for imparment This heading mainly reflects the
amounts paid In respect of nghts and licenses for the construction of parks They are amortised on a
straight-ine basis over ther estimated duration, which in the case of licenses for solar parks, this
coincides with the hfe of the facility

Computer software

Computer software licences acquired from third parties are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred
to acquire and bring to use the specific software These costs are amortised over their eshimated useful
lives

Expenses assoclated with software mamntenance are recognized when incurred Costs that are directly
associated with the production of identifiable and umque software products controlled by the Group, and
that will probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond cne year, are recognized as
intangible assets Direct costs include the software development employee costs and an appropriate
portion of relevant overhead

Software development costs recognised as assets are amortised over the software’s estimated useful life
(which does not exceed 5 years)

5 4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are nitially recognized at acquisition or production cost, and are
subsequently reduced by the related accumulated depreciation and by any imparment losses
recognized, as indicated in Note 56

Property, plant and equipment upkeep and maintenance expenses are recognized In the income
statement in the year in which they occur Amounts invested In improvements that contribute o
improving capacity or efficiency or extend the uselul life are registered at their higher cost

At the initral measurement of the fixed assets, the Group estimates the current value of future obligations
of dismantling, withdrawal and other actions related to the assets, such as repair costs to the land site
This current value 1s carned as the greater cost of the asset, and a provision 1s recorded (Notes 8 and
17), which 1s financially updated during those penods subsequent to its constituion

The Group depreciates its property, plant and equipment according to the straight-ine method, at annual
depreciatton rates based on the estmated useful life of the related items In this way the Group
depreciates its photovoltaic facilities as well as the intangible assets related to them over 25 years
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The useful Ife estmates with regard to items relating to the depreciation of plant, property and
equipment are as follows

Useful hfe
Buildings 20
Plant 25
Machinery 6-7
Furnishings 6-7
Tooling 3
Vehicles 5
Computer systems 4

Financial costs directly attnbutable to the acquistion or construction of property, plant and equipment
that need more than one year before they are brought to use are recorded at ther cost untl they are In
working condition

§ & Property investment
The investment property heading In the consolidated balance sheet includes the values of land, bulldings
and other held canstructions, whether they are for leasing, or for obtaining profit from thetr future sale as
a consequence of therr increase in value due to market prices

At December 31, 2014 and 2013 the Group mamly includes land held for rent under this heading

These assets are valued according to the critena inchcated in Note 5 4 relating to plant, property and
equipment

5.6 Impairment of intangible assets and materials

Al every year end (in the case of Goodwill and assets who have an undefined useful life) or whenever
there 1s any indication of loss of value (for the remaining assets), the Group carmes out impatrment tests,
to estimate the possible existence of impairment which reduces the recoverable amount of the these
assets to below ther carrying amount

The recoverable amount 1s understood to be the fair value of the asset less the greater of the sales cost
or usage value

The recoverable amounts are calculated for each Cash Generating Unit Whenever possible, in the case
of plant, property and equipment, the impairment calcutation 1s performed by indwidual tem

The Company Management annually prepares a business plan for markets and activities for each cash
generating unit

The main hypotheses used by the Group In the impairment tests for the assets associated with the "Sale
of Electncity” segment {Note 24 4) are as follows

Hypothesis used Spamsh Selar Italian Solar
Parks Parks
Projection ime penod 30 years 25 years
Energy sale price 48 21 €/Mwh 56 34 €/Mwh
Annual increase in energy sale price 2% 2%
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The main compenents for the assets associated with the remaining segments are
— Results projections
- Investment and working capital projections

Other vanables which influence the measurement of the recoverable value are

- Type of reduction to be applied, understanding this to be the weighted average of the capital
cost, which 1s mainly influenced by the following vanables, the cost of the liabilites and the
specific nsks of the assels

- Growth rate of the cash flows used to extrapolate cash flow projections beyond that of the penod
covered by budgets or forecasts

The projections are prepared from past experience and based on the best avalable estmates, these
being consistent with external information

The business plans prepared thus so are revised and finally approved by the Directors

It an impairment loss must be recognized for a cash- generating unit which had been allocated all or part
of Goodwill, firstly the goodwill carrying value for the unit 1s reduced If the impairment 1s greater than thig
amount, then the carrying value of the other assets of the cash generatng umit are reduced
proporttonately, until the greater of the following values fair value less cost of sale, its usage value and
zero Based on this, the Direclors consider that at December 31, 2014 there 15 no evidence of the need
to record any impairment in the accompanying consolidated financial statements

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses {(a circumstance not allowed for Goodwill), the book
value of the asset or the cash generating unit 1s increased by the revised amount of its recoverable
amount, but In such a way that the increased book value does not exceed the book value which would
have been recognized If no impairment loss had been recognized in previous years This reversal of an
impairment loss 18 recognized as ncome

57 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
nsks and rewards underlying the cwnership of the leased asset to the lessee All other leases are
classified as operating leases

Finance leases

In finance leases operations 0 which the Group 1s the iessee, the cost of the leased assets 15 presented
in the consohdated balance sheet based on the nature of the leased asset, and simultaneously, a hability
1s recorded for the same amount  This amount will be the lower value of the farr value of the leased
asset and the present value, at the nception of the lease, of the agreed minimum lease payments,
include the price of the purchase option, when it 1s reasonably certain that it will be exercised The
minmum lease payments do not include contingent rent, costs for services and taxes to be paid by and
reimbursed to the lessor The total financial charges ansing under the lease are allocated to the income
statement far the year in which they are incurred using the effective interest method Contingent rent 1s
recognized as an expense for the penod in which its incurred

Leased assets are depreciated, based on their nature, using similar crilena to those applied to the items
of plant, property and equipment that are owned
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Operating leases

Income and expense resulting from operating leases is presented in the consolidated income statement
in the year In which they are incurred

In addition, the acquisition cost of ihe leased asset i1s presented in the consolidated balance based on its
nature, beng increased by directly chargeable lease expense, which 1s recognized as expense dunng
the penad of the lease, and which 1s subject to the same criteria used for recognizing lease income

Any collection or payment carried that might be made when arranging an aperating lease will be treated

as prepaid lease collection or payment which will be allocated to profit or loss n accordance with the
time pattern in which the benefits of the leased asset are provided or received

5 8 Financial instruments

Financial assets
Classification of financial assels-

The financial assets of the Group are classified in the following categones

a) Loans and receivables Financial assets ansing from the sale of goods or rendenng of services in the
ordinary course of the Company’s business, or financial assets which, not having commercial
substance, are not equity instruments or dervatives, have fixed or determinable payments and are
not traded i an active market

b) Avalable for sale financial assets These include debt secunties and eguity instruments of other
companies that are not classified in any other category

imtial recognition -

Financial assets are miially recognized at the fair value of the consideration given plus any directly
attributable transaction costs

Subsequent measurement -

Loans and recelvables are measured al amortized cost

Available for sale fmancial assets are measured at far value and the gains and losses ansing from
changes in far value are recognized in equity untl the asset 1s disposed of or it is determined that it has
become (permanently) impaired, at which tme the cumulative gains and losses previously recognized In
consolidated equity are recognized consolidated income statement

Accordingly, impairment (on a permanent basis) 1s deemed to exist if the market value of the asset has
fallen by more than 40% over a penod of 18 months without the value being recovered Generally, fair
value Is referenced to reliable market values Accordingly, the listed pnce i an active market 1s deemed
the best reference of far value, except on those occasions when determined situations co-exist {for
example, book value exceeding listed price, absence of disposal perspectives, low market trading
volume, recoverable expectations of the nvestment via dividends) which could lead to the understanding
that the Iisted value 1S not representative of the far vaiue, n which case measurements carried out by
third parties will be addressed in accordance with generally applied financial practices { e cash flow
reductons or similar)
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At least at year end the Parent company carnes out an impairment test on those financial assets which
are not recorded at far value Objective ewdence of impairment 1s deemed to exist it the recoverable
value of the financial asset 1s less than its book value When this occurs, the appropnate wnte-down 1S
recognized in the consolidated income statement

The Group writes off financial assets when they expire or the cash flow nghts pertaining 10 the financial
asset have been transferred and when substantially all the nsks and rewards attaching to ewnershup of
the asset have been transferred, such as in the case of firm asset sales, factoning of trade receivables in
which the company does not retain any credit or interest nsk, sale of financial assets with repurchase
agreement at its fair value or any usage of the financia! assets in which the transternng company does
not retain subordinate financing or grants any type of secunty or assumes any other type of nsk At
December 31, 2014 and 2013 the Group does not hold any agreement of this nature

However, the Group does not wnite off financial assets, and recognizes a financial hability for an amount
equal to the consideration recewed, in transfers of financial assets in which substantally all the nsks and
rewards of ownership are retained, such as in the case of with-recourse factoring, financial asset sale
with repurchase agreement at a fixed price or at sale price plus interest, and asset securiization in which
the transferrng company retans subordinate financing or other types of securties which substanhally
absorb all the expected losses At December 31, 2014 and 2013 the Group does not hold any agreement
of this nature

With respect to the value adjustments related to trade and other recevables, the critenia used by the
Group 1o measure the value adjustments, If the case arose, 1s to make a provision for frade insolvencies
based on individual analysis of the receivables and an estimation of the amounts which are envisaged as
wrregular or very doubtful

Fmnancial liabiities

Financial labiities includes amounts payable by the Group that have ansen from the purchase of goods
and services in the normal course of business and these which, not having commercial substance
cannot be classified as derivative financial instruments

Payables are inially measured at farr value of the consideration received and are adjusted by directly
attributable transaction costs Subsequently, these labilihes are measured according lo their amortized
cost

Financial guarantee contracts are inially measured at far value which, unless there 1s proof to the
contrary, will be the same as the premium receved plus the current value of the premiums to be
received

The Group derecognizes financial liabilites when the obligations giving nse to them cease to exist

Financial derivatives and hedge accounting

The Group uses financial dervatives to hedge the risks to which its activities, transactions and future
cash flows are exposed Basically, these risks are vanations In interest rates Within the framework of
these operations the Group uses financial hedging instruments (Note 13)

The Group has opted to designate these instruments, whenever possible, (when accounting standards
are met), as hedging nstruments In order for a financial denvatwe to be considered by hedge
accounting, it 1s necessary for the Group to hedge one of the following types of risk

1 Vanatons in the values of iis assets and habilties due to fluctuations in price, Interest rates or
balances to hedge (farr value hedges)
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2 Changes n cash flow estmates generating from financial assets and habilies, obligations and
highly probable foreseen operations (cash flow hedges)

3 The net investment of a business transacuon abroad {foreign net investments hedges})

Accordingly, the nsk associated with the rtem or hedged posiion must be effectively eliminated
throughout the forecast penod of the hedging and there must be appropriate documentatron indicating
that the arrangement of the financial derivative specifically occurred for hedging purposes of determined
balances or transachons, as well as the way in which this effective hedging 1s to be attained and
measured

In order for these financial mstruments to be classified as hedges, they are imitially designated thus so
and the hedge is documented Accordingly, the Group inially verfies and regularly verifies throughout
its hfe {every year end as a minimumy} that the hedging is efficient, 1 e , that it I1s expected prospectively
that the changes in fair value or in the cash flows of the hedged item {attrbutable to the covered nsk) are
almost completely compensated by those of the hedging instrument, and that, retrospectively, the results
of the hedge have varied between a range of 80% and 125% with regard to the result of the item
covered

As has been previously mentioned, the Group applies cash flow hedges For these types of instruments,
the gain or loss of the hedging instrument which has been deemed efficient Is recognized provisicnally in
equity, and 1s recognized i the income statement for the same penod In which the item 1s being hedged
with regard to the result, except when the hedge corresponds to a transaction forecasted to result in the
recognition of a non-financral asset or hability, n which case the amounts recorded under equaly will
include the cost of the asset or hability when 1t 1s acquired or assumed (see note 13)

5 9 Inventories

Inventones are measured at the lower of acquisition cost, production cost and net realisable value Trade
discounts, rebates, similar items and interest included n the face valug of the related payables are
deducted in determining the costs of purchase (see Note 15)

Production cost includes the cost of raw materals, direct labour and general production overheads until
year end

Net realisable value 1s the estmated selling price less the esttmated costs of completion and costs to be
incurred 1n marketing, selling and distribution

The Group uses the FIFO method for recording costs

The Group makes appropnate value adjustments, recogrizing an expense in the income statement when
the net realizable value of the inventories 1s less than the acquisition price {or production cost) (see Note
15)

Work in pragress and finished products relate mainly to photovoltaic solar parks in construction The cost
of finished products and work in progress includes the cost of design, raw matenals, direct labour and
other direct costs and general production overheads (based on normal operating capacity)

The net realizable value 1s the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the related
costs estimated as necessary
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Completed electncity generating solar facihties are considered inventones during the usual seling period
of such facilities that normally does not exceed 18 months

In the case of inventories that require a perniod exceeding one year to be ready to be sold, financial
expense Is included 1n the cost In the same terms as those envisaged for assets

At 31 December 2014 the Group has purchasing commitments for the acquisition of mventones to
complete the construction of photovoltaic parks amounting to EUR 3 447 thousand (EUR 3 913 thousand
in 2013}

5 10 Cash and other cash equivalents

This heading includes cash, bank current accounts, and f relevant, deposits and temporary asset
acquisitions which meet the following requirements

— They are convertible into cash
— Atthe time of acquisition their maturnity did not exceed three months
— They are not subject to a sigmificant nisk in changes in value

— They are part of the normal freasury management policy of the Company

5.11 Grants, donations and bequests

The Group uses the following criteria for recognizing grants, donations and bequests received from non-
shareholder third parties

a) Non-repayable grants, denatons and capital bequests These are measured at far value of the
amount or asset recened, according to whether they are of a monetary nature or not, and recognized
in the income statement for the penod in preportion to the amortization or depreciation charged on
the relevant assets or, If applicable, upon thew sale or value adjustment, with the exception of those
received from owners or shareholders which are directly recognized mn equity as they do not
constitute income

b) Repayable grants These are recognized as liabiliies whilst they maintain their repayable nature

¢) Operating grants Thease are credited in the imcome statement when they are awarded unless they
are used to offset an operating deficit In future years, n which case they are recogmzed in those
years If they are awarded to offset specific expense, they are recognized in the income statement as
the related expenses are incurred

5.12 Corporale income tax

Since 2010, OPDE Investment Espafa, S L and subsidiary companies whose corporate address 1S in
Navarre (Annex [}, file consohidated tax returns This is regulated by the Regional Law 24/1996 of 30
December for the Region of Navarre governing corporate income tax

Tax expense {tax income) comprises current tax expense (current tax ncome) and deferred tax expense
{deferred tax income)

Income tax expense Is the amount payable by the Group as a result of income tax settlements fora
given year Tax credits and other tax benefits, excluding withholdings and pre-payments, and tax loss
carryforwards from pnor years effectively offset in the current year reduce the current income tax
expense
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Deferred tax expense or income relates to the recogniion and derecogrution of deferred tax assets and
labilties These include temporary differences measured at the amount expected o be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of the assets and habilites and their tax bases,
as well as tax loss and tax credit carrylorwards These amounts are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the penod when the asset 1s reahzed or the labtlity 15 settled

Deferred tax hiabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary difterences, except those anising from the
initral recognition of goodwll or other assets or liabilities in a transaction that netther affects the tax resuit
nar accounting result, and 1s not a business combination

Deferred tax assets are only recogmized insofar as future tax profits will probably anse for the Group
against which to offset the temporary differences (see Note 20)

Accordingly, at a consolidated level any differences which may anse between the consolidated value of a
subsidiary and its tax base are considered In general, these differences anse n the cumulative income
generated since the acquisition date of the subsiciary, in the tax deductions related o the investment
and the translation difference in the case of investments made in a funchonal currency different to the
euro Deferred tax assets and labilibes ansing from these differences are recognized except when, in
the case of taxable differences, the investor I1s able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference, and n the case of deductble differences the difference Is expected to be reversed in the
foreseeable future and 1t1s probable that the company will have suffictent future tax gains

Deferred lax assets and habilities arising from transactions charged or credited directly to equity are also
recogrused directly in equity

At each accounting close, the deferred tax assets recognized are reviewed and appropnate adjustments
are made when there are doubts as to their future recoverability Likewise, at each accounting close the
deferred tax assets that have not been recognized In the balance sheet are assessed and recognized to
the extent of therr recovery against future taxable profits at the lower of a maximum usage perigd of 10
years and the offset imn dictated by tax legislation

5 13 Ternunation benefits

Under current legislation, the Group is required to pay termination benefits to employees termmnated
under certain conditions Therefore, termunation benetits that can reascnably quantified are recognised
as an expense In the year in which the decision to terminate the employment relationship 1s taken

At 31 December 2014 the consohdated financial statements do not include any provision n this
connection, as the Group Directors do not expect any situation of this nature to anse

5 14 Provisions and contingencies

When prepanng the consolidated financial statements the Group Directors have made a distnction
between

a) Provisions credit balances covering present obligations ansing from past events whose settlement
will give nse to an outflow of resources, but whose amount and/or timing ts uncertain

b) Contingent habilties possible obligations that anse from past events, whose future existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-cccurrence of one or more events not within the Group s control
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The consolidated financial statements include all the provisions with respect to which it 1s constdered that
it 15 more likely than not that the obligation will have to be setiled Contingent labiites are not
recognized In the financial statements, but rather are disclosed, unless the possibility of an outiiow In
settlement I1s considered to be remote

Provisions are measured at the present value of the best possible estimate of the amount required to
settle or transfer the obligation, taking nto account the mformation available on the event and its
consequences Adjusiments made to provisions are recognized as financial expense on an accrual
basis

The compensation o be received from a third party on settlement of the obligation 1s recognized as an
agset, provided that there are no doubts that the rexmbursement will take place, unless there 1s a legal
relationship whereby a portion of the nsk has been externalized as a result of which the Group 1s not
liable, in this situation, the compensation will be taken into account for the purpose of estimating the
amount of the related provision that should be recognized

As 15 normal practice in the sector, the Group granis customer warranties under the turn-key contracts
for photovoltaic plants The Group’s Management uses judgment to determine the amount of provisions
necessary to cover potental warranty clams on turn-key contracts, which are estimated based on
theoretical projections and histonical information regarding defects and estimated repair costs, and which
are regularly reviewed and adjusted At 31 December 2014 and 2013 no warrant provisions exist since
there 1s no significant evidence 1n this respect, with the consideration that the warranties provided by the
manufacturers of the components used by the Group, as well as the external insurance obtaned by
manufacturers for those parts, would sufficiently cover any incident On the other hand a provision has
been recognized for EUR 562 thousand at Decermber 31, 2014 (EUR 491 thousand in 2013) relating to
warranties for Group manufactured matenals sold to third parties, based on histonical information
regarding defects {see note 17)

5 15 Revenue recogmition

Revenue and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis, 1 when the actual flow of the goods and
services occurs, regardless of when the resulting monetary or financial flow anses Revenue 1s
measured at the far value of the consideration received, net of discounts and taxes

Revenue from sales 1s recognized when the significant nisks and rewards of ownership of the goods sold
have been transferred to the buyer, and the Group neither continues to manage the goods nor retains
effective control over them

Revenue from the rendering of services i1s recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the
transaction at the end of the reporting perod, provided the outcome of the transaction can be estimated
reliably

Interest income from financial assets 1s recogmzed using the effective interest methad and dividend
income 1s recogmzed when the shareholder’s rnight 1o receive payment 1s established Interest and
dividends from financial assets accrued after the date of acquisiion are recognized as income in the
consolidated iIncome statement

Sales of solar parks

Revenues on turn-key projects for the construction of solar parks for non-Group third parties are
recognrzed by applying the percentage of completion to the total forecast margin on the construction
and sale of the solar park provided that at 31 December each year the following conditions are met

- there 1s a firm obligation from the purchaser pror to the commencement of the turmn-key
construction

- total revenues 1o be received may be estimated with an acceptable level of assurance
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- the costs to completion of the contract and level of completion to saud date may be relably
estimated

Where there 1s no firm obligaton with a non-group third party purchaser or where the result of a
construction contract cannot be reliably estimated, contract revenues are recognized only up to the hmat
of the construction contract costs considered recoverable When it1s probable that the contract costs will
exceed total contract revenues, the expected loss 1s recognized immediately as an expense

The percentage of completion is calculated on the basis of total estimated revenues under each contract
and s determined taking into account the relationship between the costs ncurred to date and total
forecast project costs

At December 31, 2014 the UK projects, Natewood and Oakland meet the aforementioned cenditions to
be recorded by percentage of completion The margin has been recorded as EUR 454 thousand under
“Revenue” in the accompanying income statement and a EUR 1 351 thousand under “Trade receivables
for sales and services rendered” In the accompanying consohdated balance sheset At 31 December 2013
no turn-Key projects met the previously stated conditions

Sale of electricity {Spanish Solar Parks

Nexus Energia, S A, acts as a sales agent for the group in the market, making seitlements with different
energy market agents and reflecting the billing

As Is descnbed in Note 1, in 2014 the segment of the Group related to the sale of elecinicity in the
Spanish market 1s subject to two different regulations which have directly atfected the price for which the
energy produced 1s billed, such that the incomes corresponding 1o the current year have been governed
by different regulations based on the regulation which was in force at the time of the accrual Initsally, one
regulation was in force untl the coming into effect of Royal Decree-law 413/2014 on June 6 and by
another since then until December 31, 2014

The mcome accrued since the entry of Royal Decree 9/2013, on July 14, untii its final development into
the new law 413/2014 (Note 1), has been recorded based on the best estmate according to the
regulation applicable The excess of income regulated 1n account to be received from the agent Nexus
Energia, S A, from July 14, 2013 to June 6, 2014 has been regulanzed in 2014

Based on this regularization, the Companies in this segment have recorded amounts corresponding to
investment remuneration and for the Mwh produced after the coming into effect of the Royal Decree-law

413/2014, which are to be recewved in 2014 according to the new law, which have been recorded under
“Revenue” in the accompanying consolidated income statement for the year ended December 31, 2014

5.16 Foreign currency transactions

Functional and presentation currency

The annual accounts of the Group are presented in Euros, which s the Group s functional and
presentation currency
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Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated to the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevaiing at the transaction dates Foreign currency gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
transactions and translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and habihties denominated
in foreign currencies are recorded In the income statement, unless they are deferred In equity as
quabfied cash flow hedges and qualified net investment hedges

5.17 Related-party fransactions

In general, transactions between group companies are intially recognised at far value If applicable,
where the agreed price differs from the {fatr value, the difference 1s recogrised based on the economic
reality of the transaction Transactions are subsequently measured In accordance with applicable
standards

Notwithstanding the above, in mergers, spin-offs and non-monetary contnbutions of a busingss the items
constituting the acquired business are measured at therr carrying values in the consolidated accounts for
the group or sub-group after the transaction takes place

When the parent company of the group or sub-group and the subsidiary do not intervene, the annual
accounts to be considered for such purposes will be those of the group or largest sub-group in which the
equity elements are integrated, whose parent company i1s Spanish

{n these cases any difference which could arise between the net value of the assets and habities of the
acquired company, adjusted by the balance of grants, donations and bequests received and value
adjustments, and any capitat amount or paud in capital by the acquinng company s taken to reserves

§ 18 Current and non-current items

Current assets are those related to the normal operating cycle, generally considered to be one year, and
those assets which are expected to mature, be sold or realized in the short-term after the accounting
date Current assets also include financial assets held for negotiation, with the exception of financial
derwvatives whose settlement pericd 1s more than one year, and cash and other cash equivalents Assets
which do not meet these requirements are classifted as non-current items

Accordingly, current habilities are those related to the normal operating cycle, those held for negotiation,
with the exception of financial denvatives whose settlement period 1s more than one year and in general
all those obhgations which will mature or be settled short-term Otherwise, they are classified as non-
current items

5 19 Environmental disclosures

Assets of an environmental nature are deemed those which are used in a long-lasting way in the
Group’s activity, whose main aim 1s to minimize environmental impact and protect and improve the
environment, as well as reducing and eliminating future contamination

Business actions with an environmental impact are considered an expense of the year or an increase in
the value of the relevant assel, on the basts of the measurement criteria described in property, plant and
equipment in the corresponding note above
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5 20 Cash flow sfatements

The concepts used In the presentation of the consolidated cash flow statements are as follows

29

—  Cash flows inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents 1e highly liquid short-term
investments subject to low risk of impairment

- Operating actvities ordnary Group activities, as well as other actvities which cannot be
classsfied as investing or financing activilies

— Investing actvities the acquisition, sale or disposal of non-current assets and other investments
not included in cash and cash equivalents

—  Fiancing activities activiies which cause changes in equity and the labiliies which are not
included in operating activities

Business combinations

In 2014 the Group has acquired 100% of the company, Haymaker Mourtmill, Ltd for EUR 1 699 thousand
(Note 7), the Directors considered the full total of the premwum price pad as Goodwill derived from the
operating nghts held by the company

7 Intangible assets

The movements under this heading of the consolidated balance sheet in 2014 and 2013 are as follows (in

thousands of euros)

Year 2014

Changes n the

consohidation

scope (Notes 1

Cost 31 1213 { Addittons Disposals Transfers and 2 ¢) 311214

Research and development 319 - - - - 319
Concessions, patents,licences 2679 - - (84) {2) 2593
Computer software 628 23 - - (37N 614
Goodwill - 1 699 - - - 1699
Other 1ntangible assets 720 176 (128) (288) _(6) 474
Total cost 4 346 1.898 (128) 372 (45) 5699

Changes 1n the

consolidation

scope (Notes |

Amortization 31§12 13 | Provisions | Disposals Transfers and 2 ¢) 311214

Research and development (160) (80) - - - 240
Concesions, patents, licences (42} (139) - - - (181)
Computer software (306) (117 - - 37 (386)
Other imntangible assets (220) (14) 14 - 3 (217)
Total amortization {728) (350) 14 - 40 {1024)
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Changes 1n the
consolidation
scope (Notes |
Impairment 311213 { Provisions Transfers Disposals and2¢) [311214
Other intangible assets - (61) - - - 61)
Total Impairment - (61) - - - (61)
Total intangible assets | Opening Closing
balance balance
Cost 4 346 5699
Amortization (728) (1024)
Tmpairment - (61)
Net total 3.618 4.614
Year 2013
Changes 1n the
consolidation
scope (Notes 1
Cost 3112 12 | Addinons Transfers &2¢) 311213
Research and development 325 - - (6) 319
Concessions, patents and licences 3 440 23 (126) (658) 2679
Computer software 518 128 (18) - 628
Other 1ntangible assets 484 453 217 - 720
Total cost 4.767 604 (361) {(664) 4.346
Changes 1n the
consohdation
scope {Notes 1
Amortization 311212 | Provisions Transfers &2c¢) 311213
Research and development (82) (80) - 2 (160)
Concessions, patents and licences {106) (141) 157 48 (42}
Computer software (209) (111) 14 - (306)
Other intangible assets (349) - 129 - {220)
Total amortization (746) (332) 300 50 (728)
Total intangible assets | Opening Closing
balance balance
Cost 4767 4346
Amortization (746) (728)
Net total 4021 3618

The additions in 2014 manly include the costs associated with the projects developed by the Group in
Mexico, totaling EUR 176 thousand (453 thousand euros in 2013) which 1s recorded under “Intangible
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assels - other intangible assets” Similarly, certain costs included under “Intangible assets™ n 2013 have
been transferred to the item “Inventories — work in course of construction™ in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheet for 2014 as they refer to exponse added to the value of the inventones of the parks which are
in the process of being constructed in this country {Note 15} At year end 2014 the Directors have made a
best estimate provision of EUR 61 thousand as intangible asset impairment, which 1s recorded under
“Impairment and results on disposals of property, plant and equipment” In the accompanying consclidated
income statement for 2014

In 2014 the Group has disposed of 115 thousand euros corresponding to a credit for engineering work and
starting up facilities

In 2014 the Group company, Otras Participaciones Industriales, S L has acquired the company, Haymaker
Mountmill for the construction of a park and subsequent sale, in the same way the Group did in 2014 with
the comparues, Haymaker Oakland and Haymaker Natewocd From this acquistion, goodwill has ansen
amounting to EUR 1 699 thousand, recorded under “Goodwill” in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet for 2014

At year end 2014 the Group has fully amortized intangible assets that are still in use for a value of EUR 60
thousand (EUR 51 thousand in 2013)

As 1s indicated in Note 10, the Group has various finance leases In place for its intangible assets amounting
to EUR 1 508 thousand n 2014 (EUR 1 503 thousand in 2013}

At 31 December 2014 and 2013 there are no firm commitments for the purchase of assets

Property. plant and equipment

The breakdown of the movements and significant information under this heading in the consolidated balance
sheets for 2014 and 2013 1s as follows (thousands of euros}
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Year 2014
Changes 1n the
consolidauon
scope (Notes 1
Cost 311213 | Addiions | Transfers Disposals & 2c) 311214
Land and buldings 3596 31 (16) - 3611
Plant and machinery 130 760 758 - {1024) 130494
Fitings, tooling and furmshings 977 9 (6) (123} 857
Other plant and equipment 1345 21 9 (67) - 1308
Prepayments and assets 1n construction 467 60 (386) - - 141
Total cost 137.145 879 (377) (89) (1147)] 136.411
Changes n the
consolidation
scope (Notes |
Amortizations 311213 |Provisions | Transfers Disposals &2¢) 311214
Land and buildings (625) Q127) - - (752)
Plant and machinery {13 627} (5291) - 561 (18357)
Fittings, tooling and furmishings (410) (&Y 6 71 (390}
Other plant and equipment (1 120) (105) 57 411 (1127
Total amortization (15 782) (5 580) 63 673| (20.626)
Changes n the
‘ consolidation
Impairment 311213 |Provisions | Transfers | Disposals [scope (Notes (311214
&2c¢)
Piant and machinery (963) (108) - - (1071)
Total Impairment (963) (108) - - (1.071)
Total property, plant | Opening Closing
and equipment balance balance
Cost 137 145 136 411
Amortization (15 782) (20 626)
Impairment (963) {1071)
Net total 120.400 114.714
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Year 2013
Changes 1n the
consolidation
scope (Notes 1
Cost 311212 | Addwons | Transfers | Disposals &2c) 311213
Land and buildings 4 089 581 233 {1 307) - 3596
Plant and machinery 140 368 185 22 839 (5) (32627)} 130 760
Fittngs, tooling and furmshings 652 43 484 (202) - 977
Other plant and equipment 1396 18 - (69) - 1345
Prepayments and assets 1n construction 54 425 (10) ) - 467
Total cost 146.559 1.252 23.546 (1.585) (32.627)| 137.145
Changes 1n the
conschdation
scope (Notes 1
Amortization 311212 |Provisions| Transfers Disposals & 2 c) 311213
Land and buildings (564) (149) - 88 - (625)
Plant and machinery (9 238) (5 990) (3779) 4 5376| (13 627)
Fitungs, toolings and furmshings (371) (133) - 94 - (410)
Other property, plant and equipment (809) (37) {334) 60 - {1120)
Total amortization (10.982) (6.309) {4.113) 246 5.376| (15.782)
Changes in the
consohdauon
Impairment 311212 |Provisions | Transfers Disposals scope 311213
Plant and machinery - (963) - - - (963)
Total amortization - (963) - - - (963)
Total property, plant | Opemng Closing
and equipment balance balance
Cost 146 559 137 145
Amortization (10 982) (15 782)
Impairment - (963)
Net total 135.577 120.400
At year end 2014 and 2013 the Group owns property which s valued separately from land and buildings as
follows (In thousands of euros}
2014 2013
Accumulated Accumulated
Gross amortization Net Gross amortization Net
Land 1 662 - 1662 1662 - 1 662
Buildings 1949 (752) 1197 1934 (623%) 1309
3611 (752) 2 859 359 (625) 2.971
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In 2014 the Group has registered an amount of EUR 879 thousand under property, plant and equipment,
which mainly comes from additions in the Itahan companies which have purchased modules, inverters and
structures

Similarly, 1n 2014 an amount has for EUR 377 thousand has been transferred in the compares in the UK to
“Inventories — sem finshed goods” in the consolidated balance sheet for 2014, relating to work carried out in
previous years which were recorded under property, plant and equpment The Company Directars have
determined that this work can be included under inventones as they give a higher value to the park being
constructed

In 2014 the group has recorded an impairment of property, plant and equipment amounting to EUR 108
thousand, charged under “Impaiment and results on disposals of property, plant and equipment —
Impairment and losses” n the accompanying consolidated income statement and registered a credit to the
itemn “Plant, machmery, tooling, furnishings and other fixed asseis” i the accompanying consohdated
balance sheet (EUR 963 thousand in 2¢13) Similarly, the disposals of fixed assets the Company has carried
out In 2014 have led to a loss to the Group amounting to EUR 37 thousand, which has been charged under
“Imparment and results on disposals of property, plant and equipment — Impairment and losses” in the
accompanying consolidated income statement for 2014

In 2013 the Directors transferred EUR 1 727 thousand to the item “Property, plant and equipment — Plant,
machinery, tooling, furmishing and other property, plant and equipment” which corresponds to the Tarassa
solar park, which at year end 2012 was recorded under “Inventonies - Firished goods and work in
construction” for EUR 1157 thousand as it was in the process of constructien This park entered in
construction mn 2013

Similarly, in 2013 the Group transferred the solar parks OPDE Pugha (Raly} and Solare Pugha (Puglia) to the
itern “Property, plant and equipment — Plant, machinery, tooling, furnishings and other property, plant and
equipment” for an amount for EUR 21 174 thousand In 2012 these assets were recorded under “Non-
current assets held for sale” The net amortization cost from previcus years transferred to 2013 amounts to
EUR 17 646 thousand (Note 14) The Group recalculated the amorization charge relating to the assets
transferred to 2014 The expense for 2013 totalled EUR 924 thousand in 2013 (Note 14}

As 15 detailed in Notes 1 and 2 ¢, the Group sold the solar parks, Almaraz 35, Premnote Eguzki 1, Piemante
Eguzki 10 and Ribaforada 6 as a consequence of the agreement reached on June 19, 2013 with the minornity
shareholder, Rios & Ennque, S L The capital gan from the sale amounted to EUR 18 537 thousand, as I1s
recorded under “Impairment and results on disposals of property, plant and equipment — Results on
dispasals and other” in the accompanying consohdated income statemment for 2013 (Note 21 5)

In addiion, In 2013 the heading “Property, plant and egtipment — Prepayments and work in construction”
was achvated by an amount for EUR 378 which corresponds to plant and machinery relating to the solar
park, Gamma Solar § r| (United Kingdom) which was in the process of construction

The Group has pledged solar parks amounting to EUR 41 118 thousand (EUR 42 761 thousand in 2013) as
a guarantee agamnst the meeting of commitments denved from ceram clauses regarding the loans received
for the financing of the parks {Note 18 1}

In 2014 no Group company or associate company assets have been acquired

At 31 December 2014 the net carrying amount of property, plant and equ:pment located out of Spain 1s EUR
72 710 thousand (EUR 68 994 thousand in 2013)

There are fully amortized assets still in use as follows {in thousands of euros)




10

35

opde

Grupo Opde

2014 2013
Plant, machinery and other property, plant and equipment 591 341

As Is broken down in Note 10, at December 31, 2014 the Group has taken out finance leases for its
property, plant and equipment amounting to EUR 61 816 thousand (EUR 61 105 thousand at December 31,
2013)

The Group has taken out a number of insurance policies to cover nsks relating to property, plant and
equipment The coverage provided by these policies 15 considered to be sufficient

At 31 December 2014 the Group has no fixed asset purchase commitments (EUR 7 thousand in 2013)
Property nvestment

At 31 December 2014 and 2013 the Group presents an amount tetalng EUR 702 thousand under
“Investment property” which relates to land acquired for the construchon of solar parks This land 15 leased to
the owners of the photovoltaic plants

Under the heading "Non-core and other income” in the consolidated income statement, an amount totaling
EUR 116 thousand (EUR 149 thousand in 2013) has been recorded, relating to the mcome from investment
property in 2014

At year end 2014 and 2013 no restrictions exist regarding the realization of new property investments and
the collection of the denving income, or related to gans obtained from a possible sale

At year end 2014 and 2013 there are no contractual cbligations regardng repars, maintenance or
improvements n the aforementioned investment property

Leases
Finance leases

Finance leases at year end 2014 and 2013, in which the Group acts as the lessee, are recognized based on
the leased asset as foliows (thousands of euros)

2014 | 2013
Assets measured at fair value
Intangible assets (Note 7) 1508 1503
Property, plant and equipment (Note §) 61916 64 105
Total 63.424 65.608

At year end 2014 and 2013 the Group’s finance lease contracts have the following mirimum payable
amounts (including purchasing options if applicable) 1 place, without taking into account common expense,
future increases due to inflaton, or agreements regarding future updates of monthly rentals {in thousands of
euros)
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2014 2013
Finance leases Normunal Current Nominal Current
Minimum payable amounts value value value value
Less than one yearMenos de un afio 6293 3331 6293 3236
One to five years 25172 15 620 25172 14 342
More than five years 58 625 46 440 64 918 51002
Total 90.090 65.391 96.383 68 580

The breakdown of the most significant finance leases the Group holds at 2014 year end Is as follows

Thousands of euros
Rental amounts
Purchase paid
Park Location Inception | Duration option 2014 2013
Almaraz XXXIV Extremadura | 30/04/2013 | 10 years 7 76 81
Ribaforada 7 Italia 01/06/2011 | 18 years 3551 2339 2024
Piemonte Eguzki 6 Italia 28/07/2011 | 18 years 57 327 316
Ribaferada 10 (Com 1 y
Com 2) Ttala 01/05/2011 | 18 years 96 590 510
Piemonte Eguzki 2 Italha 30/06/2011 | 18 years 2551 1124 1107
Piemonte Eguzki 1 (Notal) |Italia - - - - -
OPDE Pugha — Ruatella 1  |Itaha 01/08/2010 | 18 years 48 403 432
OPDE Pugha - Gnosa | Italia 01/G3/2010 | 18 years 48 442 432
OPDE Pugha — Ruatella 2 |Italia 25/05/2010 | 18 years 48 306 325
Solare Puglia — Ginosa 2 Italia 22/02/2010 | 18 years 48 306 306
Solare Pugha - Sanmcardo  [Italia 01/03/2013 | 18 years 46 325 325

Operating lease

The Group acting as the lessee has various operating leases relating to the rent of property, machinery and

vehicles

At year end 2014 the Company s operating leases have the following mirsmum payable amounis In place,
without taking nto account common expense, future increases due to milahon, or agreements regarding
future updates of monthly rentals (in thousands of euros)

Operating leases Nomunal value | Nomunal value
Minimum payable amounts 2014 2013
Less than one year 352 272
One to five years 1102 1193
Total 1454 1465

Operating lease amounts recorded as expense in 2014 and 2013 under the item “Other operating expense —
External services” (Note 21 4) are as follows {thousands of euros)
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2014 2013

Lease payments (*) 370 397
Total 370 397
{*)Relating to non-cancelable lease contracts

There are no significant operating lease obhgations at 31 December 2014 and 2013

11 Financial investment {long and short-term)

11 1 Long-term financial nstruments

37

The classification by category of long-term financial mstruments for Group Opde 1s as follows (in

thousands of euros)

2014 2013
Loans and receivables
- Loans to companies 40 54
- Other financial assets 8 609 0722
Assets available for sale
- Equity instruments 13 624
Total 8.662 10.400

Loans to compamies

At 31 December 2014 the Group has recorded vanious loans granted to third parties in prior years as

long-term The breakdown of these loans 1s as follows (thousands of euros)

Date of Mawnty date Average Balance at Balance at
CONCessIon nterest rate 311214 311213
Sociedad Ibénca de Generacién de Energia
Fotovoltaica XIX, S L 01/12/2008 | Not established None 795 795
Sociedad Ibérica de Generacién de Energia
Fotovoltaica VI, S L. 01/12/2008 | Not estabhished None 768 768
Desarrollos Fotovoltaicos Valdecaballerc 1 a
XVILSL 01/12/2009 01/12/2018 1,5% 40 54
Total 1.603 1.617
Impairment (1 563) (1 563)
Net Total 40 54
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The Group has granted loans to various companies which total EUR 1 563 thousand, which don’t have
a contractual matunily date In 2012 the Directors decided to make a provision for 50% of the amounts
receivable, and n 2013 they made a provision for the remaining armount, this being the best estimate
by the Directors regarding the recoverable amount of the receivable amounts

Other financial assets

Al 31 December 2014 the Group has long-term financial investment totaling EUR 8 486 thousand
(EUR 9 681 thousand in 2013), which relate to deposits whose matunty 1s more than one year and
pledged under a guarantee policy granled as secunty on the compliance of specihc assumed
obligations by the Group, mamly the guarantees granted to clients regarding the sale of parks {Nole
24 1) The pered of the guaranteed obligation 1s more than one year In addtion, this long-term
financial investment corresponds to the restricted accounts which the Group must prowide for in order
to meet the contractual cbligations borne by the syndicated loan agreements

These nvestments accrue interest according to market rates In 2014 the interest accrued on long and
short term financial investment {see Note 11 2) amounts to EUR ¢ 2 millon (EUR 0 5 million in 2013),
which 1s recorded under *Finance ncome — marketable secunties and other financial instruments -
third parties” In the accompanying consolidated income statement for 2014

Equity instruments

The most relevant information related to investments in non-consolidated equity mstruments in which
the Groups holds an interest of 5% or more at year end 2014 and 2013 15 as follows (note 2 ¢)

Year 2014
% Thousands of euros
Net cost
Interest held 2014 2013
Investment Funds n/a - 611
Oher n/a 13 13
Total 13 624

At year end 2012 the Group recorded EUR 611 thousand under “Long-term financial investment —
Equity mstruments” relating to an investment m an Investment fund of a financial entity which was
pledged by a secunty which matured in 2014 The company has reclassified to short-term this asset
under “Short-term ftnancial mvestment — Other financial assets” in 2014 (Note 11 2)

11 2 Short-term financial instruments

The classification by category of short-term financial instruments of the Group s as follows {in
thousands of euros)
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2014 2013

- Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables, sales and rendenng of services (Note 5 15) 18 327 7279
Trade receivables, associate companies and related parties 310 346
Other receivables 2513 317
- Investments in associates and related parties 615 144
- Short-term financial investment 9 863 21 455
Total 31.628 29.541

Trade and other receivables

The Group records a prowvision for impairment for recewables on the basis of a specific analysis of

overdue balances and certain rates based on historical experence

The movements for the prowvision of impairment of trade recewvables, recorded as deductions in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet under “Trade receivables for sales and rendering of services”

1s as follows
Year 2014
Impairrment/
Reversals Provision
Openmg recogmzed for | application Closing
balance the year balance
Impairment of trade receivables 3627 101 - 3728
Year 2013
Impairment/
Reversals Provision
Opening recogmzed for | apphcation Closing
balance the year balance
Impairment of trade receivables 2084 1 258 (615) 3627

In 2014 the Group has recorded an amount of EUR 101 thousand (EUR 1 258 thousand in 2013),
relating to provisions made for impairment of trade receivables under the tem “Losses, impairment and

changes in trade provisions” in the accompanying income statement

At 31 December 2014 the Group has no significant batances in currencies other than the Euro

The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the date the information 1s presented 1s the fair value of each of
the categones of the aforementioned recevables The Group does not hold any guarantee as insurance
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In 2014, the Group company, Otras Participaciones Industnales, SL has acquired, from a third party,
the companies Haymaker Qakland, Ltg and Haymaker Natewood, Ltd in order to construct two parks in
the United Kingdom, and later sell therr investment and the parks The purchase price of these
compantes amounted to EUR 1917 thousand and EUR 1 041thousand respectively and approximately,
of which a remaining amount of EUR 340 thousand 15 pending payment at year end which 15 recorded
under “Sundry payables” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet for 2014 At year end 2014
the Group has scld the shares il held to a third party for an amount for EUR 5120 thousand
approximately, obtamning a gan of EUR 2 162 recorded as a credit under “Imparment and results on
disposals of financial instruments — results on disposals and other” in the consolidated ncome statement
for 2014 At December 31, 2014 there are outstanding recevable amounts totaling EUR 2 221 thousand
under the heading “Other recevables” in the accompanying consolidated batance sheet for 2014 which
will be collected dunng the first half of 2015

Short-term financial investment and deposits

At 31 December 2014 the Group holds various temporary financial investments (deposi or fixed term)
and restricted bank accounts totaling EUR 9 036 thousand (EUR 20 433 thousand in 2013) secured by a
guarantee policy (see Note 24 1) The bank accounts which total EUR 2 485 thousand are restrcled as a
consequence of contractual obligations taken on by the Group associated with the syndicated loans

Financial nsk management

The Group's activities are exposed to varous types of financial nsk market nsk (including exchange rate
nsk, interest rate nsk and price rnsk), credit nsk and hquidity nsk The Group’s overall nsk management
program focuses on uncertanty in financial markets and seeks to minimize the potential adverse impact on
its financial profitability

Responsibility for financial risk management 1s controlled by the Group's Finance Department in accordance
with policies approved by Company Directors This Department dentifies, assesses and hedges financial
exposure In close collaboration with the Group's operational umits The Group provides policies for overall
nsk management and written policies covering specific areas such as foreign exchange nisk, interest rate
nisk, Iquidity nsk, use of denvatives and non-derivatives and Investing excess liguichty

12 1 Market risk

Exchange rate nsk
The Group operates internationally and 1s exposed to the foreign exchange nsk ansing from currency

transactions The exchange rate nsk anses mamnly on business transactions abroad that are
denominated in a currency other than the eurc which 1s the Group's functional currency

Pnce nsk

The photovaltaic facilittes constructed by the Group are governed in Spain and ltaly by the regulations
outhined in Note 1

Interest rate, cash flow and fair value nsk

interest rate fluctuations affect the fair value of assets and liabilities that bear a fixed rate of inferest and
future flows of assets and habilitres that bear a floating rate of interest

As the Group has no significant interest-bearng assets, iis icome and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates, except for deposits (note 11)
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The Group's interest rate sk anses mainly on debts with credit institutions  Vanable interest rate debts
with credit institutions expose the Group to the cash flow interest rate nisk

12.2 Credit nsk

Credit nsk derives from cash and cash equivalents, bank and financial institution deposits and trade and
other receivables, including cutstanding recevables and transaction commitments Concerning banks
and financial institutions, transactions are only performed with highly recognised quahty entities, taking
into account past expenence and other factors Where there 1s no independent credit qualty rating of
customers, the Finance Department assesses the same, taking into account the customer’s financial
position, past experience and other factors It is not Group policy to grant long-term loans to customers,
except In exceptional creumstances

Maximum exposure tc the credit nsk at the date of presentation of the financial assets 1s their carrying
value

12 3 Liquidity nisk

The prudent management of iquidity rnisk entals mamntaming sufficient cash and marketable secunties,
ensunng available funding in the form of sufficient committed credit facilities and the ability to monetise
market positions Given the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Group's Finance
Department aims to ensure flexibility in financing through the avalability of committed credit ines that
complemented the financing associated with the turn-key projects

Liquidity nsk (current assets less current habilities) 1s adequately managed by means of tight control
over working capital, hmis on the amount of credit exposure to any financial institubon and permanent
monitenng of levels of borrowings and fund generation

12 4 Fair value estimafion

The carrying value of frade recewables and payables 1s assumed to approximate thewr fawr value The
fair value of financial labilites for financial reporting purposes 1s estimated by discounung fulure
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that 1s available to the Group for similar
financial instruments

Denvative financial instruments
The Group uses denvative financral instruments to cover the rnisks to which its activiies, operations and

future cash flows are exposed The breakdown of these financial dervatives at year end 2014 and 2013 1s
as follows (in thousands of euros)
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Year 2014
Nomnal Fair value at
Amount Matunty value at 31122014
Classification Rate contracted date 31122014 (Note 18)
Hedged nterest| Variable or
Interest rate SWAP [rate Fixed
7 950 30/06/2024 7 289 (962)
Hedged interest
Interest rate SWAP |rate Vanable or
Fxed 7950 | 30/06/2024 7 289 {958)
Year 2013
Nomunal Fair value at
Amount Maturity value at 31122013
Classification Rate contracted date 3112 2013 (Note 18)
Hedged interest| Vanable or
Interest rate SWAP |rate Fixed
7950 30/06/2024 7627 (328)
Hedged interest
Interest rate SWAP [rate Varnable or
Fxed 7 950 30/06/2024 7627 (340)

14

In 2014 financial expense accrued from the liguidations of swap flows has been registered as EUR 332
thousand (EUR 348 thousand in 2013), under the heading "Financial expense — payabies to third parties™ in
the accompanying consolidated income statement

The Group has complied with the requirements indicated in Note 5 B regarding measurement rules in order
to classify the aforementioned financial instruments as hedges

Non-current assets held for sale

In 2012 the Group was committed to a sales plan for the subsidianes OPDE Solare, Sri, OPDE Pugha,
S rl, and Solare Pugla, S r1 which would entail losing contrel of these companies and which was expected
to be finakzed at the end of 2013 Given that the requirements which are laid down in the Chart of Accounts
and the Rules for the Preparing of Consolidated Annual Accounts {(NOFCAC) were met in order for these
assets 10 be classified as a disposa! group, at year end 2012 the assets and liabilties of these companies
were fully consolidated, but were reclassified under "Non-current assets held for sale” and “Liabilities related
to non-current assets held for sale” (Note 2 c)

In 2013 the sales plan previously mentioned could not be brought about As a consequence, at year end
2013, the Group fully integrated the subsidiary companses mtially commitied to in the plan
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Inventories

The breakdown of this item in the consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2014 and 2013 1s as follows
({thousands of euros)

2014 2013
Goods purchased for resale 553 1378
Raw matenals and other supplies 343 355
Senu fimshed goods 3735 8 995
Prepayments to suppliers 1232 843
Total 5.863 11.571

Semi-hnished products manly include solar facilities in the process of completion which have not yet been
sold at 31 December 2014 Until they are sold, finished faciities generate energy in accordance with the
regime described in Note 1

Those finished facihhies which the Group intends to maintain in order to gamn income from energy sales
rather than sell iImmediately, are recorded under property, plant and equipment in the consolidated balance
sheet at 31 December 31, 2014 {Note 8)

Goods purchased for resale basically includes photovoltaic matenals which are pending installation or sale

Al 2014 year end, the Group I1s constructing a photovoltaic park in Mountmull (UK) which 1s expected to be
completed in 2015 At 2014 year end, the Group company,OPDE UK, Ltd, has made several prepayments to
supplers amounting to EUR 1 217 thousand which have been materialized dunng the first quarter of 2015

At 2013 year end, the Group recorded a photovoliaic park in Bishop (UK) which was under construction
Construction was completed in 2014 and the park has been sold

The Group has taken out a number of insurance policies to cover nisks relating 1o inventones The coverage
provided by these policies 1s considered to be sufficient

At 31 December 2014, under “Raw matenals” the Group has recorded a provision amounting to EUR 482
thousand against possible impairment (EUR 461 thousand in 2013) The changes or losses under this item
for 2014 and 2013 are as follows (thousands of euros)

Year 2014
Opening
balance Impairment Reversal Application Closing balance
Imparment of goods for resale 461 21 - - 482
Total 461 21 - - 482
Year 2013
Opening
balance Impairment Reversal Application | Closing balance
Impairment of goods for resale 1766 739 (1 430) ©614) 461
Total 1.766 739 (1.430) (614) 461
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Inventones assocrated with guarantees
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At 31 December 2014 and 2013, there are no commitmenis to arrange guaraniees in rem over photovoltaic

parks

Equity

16.1 Capital

At 31 December 2012 share capital of the Parent Company consisted of 301,200 fully subscribed and
paid shares with a par value of EUR1Q each

At 31 December 2012, the number of shares held by the Parent Company's shareholders was as

follows
Number of % Interest
shares held
Aldrov1, S L 89356 29,66%
Marearoja Internacional, S L 89 356 29,66%
Rios & Ennque, S L (Notal) 89356 29,66%
Jalasa Ingenieria, S L 33132 11%
301.200 100 %

After the reduction in capital described in Note 1, at 31 December 2014 and 2013 the share capital
consists of 211,844 shares with a par value of EUR 10 each, which are fully subscnbed and paid

Thus, at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the distribution of the shares held by the Parent Company's

shareholders is as follows

Number of % Interest
shares held
Aldrov1, S L. 89 356 42,18%
Marearoja Internacional, S L 89 356 42,18%
Jalasa Ingenteria, S L 33132 15,64%
211 844 100,00 %

16 2 Reserves

The breakdown of the figures in Reserves 1s as follows (thousands of euros)

2014 2013
Legal reserve 602 602
Voluntary reserves 63 779 54 648
Total Parent Company Reserves 64.381 55250
Reserves 1n Consolidated Companies (7517 (5115)
Total Consohdated Reserves (7.517) (5.115)
Total Reserves 56.804 50.135

Legal reserve

Under the Consohidated Spanish Companies Law, 10% of net profit for each year must be transferred to
the legal reserve unul the balance of this reserve reaches at least 20% of the share capital Such
reserve can be used to ncrease capital provided that the remaining reserve balance does not fall below
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10% of the increased share capital amount Otherwise, untit the legal reserve exceeds 20% of share
capital, it can only be used to offset losses, provided that sufficient other reserves are not avallable for
that purpose

Within the consolidated compantes reserves there are legal reserves totaling EUR 1 617 thousand at
year end 2014 (EUR 1 617 thousand in 2013)

Special investment reserve

On December 31, 2013 via agreement at the General Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting, and having
met the budgets required by regional Law 24/1996 of December 30 regarding corporate tax, the
Shareholders unanimously agreed to transfer the special Investment reserve to voluntary reserves

Voluntary reserves

In 2014, the General Shareholders Meeting agreed to distnbute dividends amounting to EUR 2 800
thousand charged under “Voluntary Reserves”, which at December 31, 2014 1s fully pad

On September 23, 2013 at the Extraordinary and unwersal General Shareholders Meeting, it was
unanimously agreed to offset negative results from previous years and disinbute a dwidend, for
amounis totaling EUR 13 808 thousand and EUR 130 thousand respectively with a charge to the

voluntary reserves
These are unrestricted

16 3 Minorily interests

The movement under the heading of minonty interests of the Group for 2014 and 2013 15 as follows

(thousands of euros)

2014 2013

Openimg balance 170 221
Results (56) (207}
Changes 1n the consolidation scope

- Subgroup OPDE Solare (Note 2 c) 912 -
Proinso Hellas (250) -

Other - 15§
Closing balance 776 174

A breakdown by balance cf the minonty nterests of the Group according to the equity interest held in

the following subsidiary companies is as follows

2014 2013
Render Energias Renovables, S L 635 629
Proinso Hellas - 250
Mecasolar Hellas 141 203
Subgroup OPDE Solare (Note 2 ¢} - {912)
776 170
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Provisions and contingencies

The breakdown of the provisions in the consolidated balance sheet at year end 2014 and 2013 1s as follows
{thousands of euros)

2014 2013
Long-term provisions
Trade provisions (Note 5 14) 486 491
Tax provision 149 -
Provision for dismanthng of parks (Notes 54 & 8) 1922 1444
Provision of bonuses (Note 22 3} 117 -
QOther provisions 47 250
2721 2.185
Short-term provisions
Tax provision - 543
Other provisions 66 500
66 1043

Long-term provisions

In 2014 the Group has made a provision for EUR 117 thousand, charged under “External services” In the
consolidated ncome statement for 2014 for persennel bonuses Similarly, 1 has made a provision of EUR
149 thousand, charged under “Taxes” in the consolidated mcome statement for 2014 as the best estimate
made by the Directors in retation to the payment of taxes in Italy which the company will have to bear in the
coming years In addibon, a best estmate provision has been made for EUR 478 thousand relating to the
dismantiing of ltalian and Spanish parks due to the introduction of new legislation in both countnes (Note 1)

In 2013 the Group derecognized with a charge under "Long-term pravisions — Provision for dismantiing of
parks" the provisions 1t held at the end of 2012 for the fixed assels of Almaraz 35, Piemonte Eguzki 1,
Piemonte Eguzki 10 and Ribaforada 6 for an amount of EUR 0 3 million In addition it registered with a credit
under the same heading the dismantling provision associated with the fixed assets of Elegia Trans Uno

In 2013 the Group reclassified with a charge to the item “Long-term provisions — Prowisian of bonuses” and a
credit to the item “Payables to associated companies and related parties™ In addition, the Group registered
with a charge to “Other operating expense — External serices” and a credit to “Payables to associated
comparues and refated partes” an amount for EUR 140 thousand as the greater amount of the commitments
undertaken

The Group offers warranties on its manufactured geods which range from 3 to 10 years The proviston for
warranties I1s established on the basis of the historical record of repairs

Short-term provisions

The exit from the consolidation scope of Proyectos integrales solares, S L U, has led to a reduction of EUR
163 thousand in short-term provisions (Note 1) In addition, the Group company Mecasolar US A has
reversed a provision amounting to EUR 251 thousand with a credit under “Excess provisiens” n the
consolidated balance sheet for 2014 after receving payment of the amounts provisioned for In previous
years which were for the costs of a park’s repairs which the company did not finally bear
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in 2012 the Group registered a charge to equity for a prowision relating to the tax settlement for the
construction of certain solar parks disposed of by the Group in previous years and for which the Group
underlook the payment commitment of EUR 1992 thousand, and recorded a credi under the heading
“Short-term provisions” In the consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2012 as well as the
corresponding tax effect In 2012 and 2013 the Group applied EUR 274 thousand and EUR 549 thousand
respectively from this prowision Similarly, n 2013 the Group transferred EUR 600 thousand to the item
“Other payables with Public Authonties” from the accompanying consolidated balance sheet which have
been settled in 2014 (Note 20) In 2014 the Group has reversed the heading “Excess prowvisions” in the
consolidated income statement for 2014 with a credit for EUR 543 thousand regarding taxes which have not
been required by the Public Authorities

Payables (long and short-term)

18.1 Long-term financial habilities

The balance under “Long-term payables” at year end 2014 and 2013 15 as follows (in thousands of

euros)
Year 2014
Finance lease Other
Bank habilities Dernvatives financial
borrowings (Note 10) Note 13) | habihies Total
Creditors and payables 27197 62 061 1517 - 80 775
Total 27.197 62.061 1.517 - 90.775
Year 2013
Finance lease Other
Bank liabilities Dervatives | financial
borrowings (Note 10) Note 13) | labiliies Total
Creditors and payables 42 655 65 344 334 1020 109 353
Total 42.655 65.344 334 1020 109 353

The breakdown of the ttems 1n “Long-term payables” by matunty 1s as follows (in thousands of euros)

Year 2014
2020 and
2016 2017 2018 2019 following Total

Bank borrowings 1353 1 448 1544 1577 21275 27197
Finance lease creditors
(Note 10) 3460 3654 3821 3998 47128 62 061
Denvatives (Note 13) 350 323 295 276 273 1517

5.163 5.425 5.660 5.851 68.676 90.775
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Year 2013
2019 and
2015 2016 2017 2018 following Total
Bank borrowings 1950 2062 2202 2336 34 105 42 655
Finance lease creditors
(Note 10) 3294 3439 3604 3771 51236 65 344
Denvatives (Note 13) 276 186 101 32 (261) 334
Other financial liabilities 1 020 - - - - 1020
6 540 5 687 5.907 6139 85.080 169.353

At 31 December, 2014 the Group has taken out syndicated financing totaling EUR 42 763 thousand (EUR
44 495 thousand in 2013) with different financial entities to finance certan operating solar parks These
contracts mclude a senes of condiions and commitments undertaken by the Group, notably amongst others

- Maintaning stable mcome and expense,
- Maintaining certain ratios pledging payment of the debt and equity solvency,
— Mantaining reserves accounts for the payment of the debt,

—  Other commstments which mainly affect the unrestricted availability of the cash generated by the
parks and the availability of asset elements

At 31 December, 2014 one of the financial ratios of the three financing contracts has not been met, such
that, according to the contracts, thig 1s one of the causes for advance settlement In accordance with that
which 1s lard out in the Official Gazette n®81/2010, consultation 6 of the ICAC regarding the classification of
fong term [oans, given that the contract demands early settlement due to non-compliance with certain
conditions, the Directors have reclassified to short-term the tota! amount of the amount owed which matures
in a period of more than 12 months amounting to EUR 13 3 million, albeit, they consider that under no
crreumstances will the Banks require advance repayment of such amount

On July 28, 2014 Triodos Bank informed the Group that after the passing of new legislaiion (Note 3)
indicating that the changes introduced have affected the base upon which the financing was granted, and for
which they are susceptible to a cause of early matunty and/or the generation of the advance amortization
commitments provided for in the contract Smmlarly, in virtue of this notfication any payment charged to the
financing accounts is blocked which 1s not related to the payment of essential operating and mantenance
costs of the faciites On December 31, 2014 the bank has confirmed to the Group that it has not required
the early repayment, either total or partial, as a consequence of the approval of the new legislation
Consequently, the Directors have mantained the classifications of the bank borrowings based on the
maturity dates inittially established in the contracts, as they consider that the Group meets ail the conditions
and commitments undertaken in the syndicated loan, a and they consider that early settlement of the loan
will not be required
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18 2 Short-term financial 1abiities

The balance for the accounts under * Short-term payables — Bank borrowings” at year end 2014 and 2013
15 as follows (In thousands of euros)

2014 2013

Bank borrowings 16 528 4133
Documentary credits, imports and

other - 467

Other loans recetved 94 88

Accrued interest payable 407 422

Credit lines 4 158 7855

21.187 12,965

Loans received

This refers to the short-ierm part of vanous loans received from different banking entiies to finance the
construchion of photovoltaic parks (Note 18 1) Interest s maunly accrued at vanable market rates tn addition
there are loans recewved In previous years from financial entilies for the deduction of tax recevables from the
Regional Tax Office for VAT refunding and corporate tax refunds for 2013 On January 2, 2014 and January
30, 2014 these Ipans were cancelled

Credit ines and other,

In 2014 a credit ine has been opened in OPDE UK for the construction of three parks, of which EUR 42
milllon was available at year end 2014

At 31 December 2014 the credit ines imit amount to EUR 14 millon (EUR 21 milion in 2013), while the
amount not used totals EUR 9 & rilhon (EUR 13 2 million in 2013) Interest accrues at market rates linked to
Eunbor

In addition the Group has a credit ine, which includes confirming, amounting to EUR 5 million, of which the
amount not used at December 31, 201415 EUR 2 3 million

At 31 December 2014 the Group does not have any significant payable balances In toreign currency
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18 3 Information regarding payment deferrals to suppliers Additional
Prowvision n?3 "Duty of disclosure” of the Law 15/2010, of July 5-

Set out below 1s the information required by Addional Proviston N#3 of the Act 15/2010 of July 5

Payments made and Payments made and
outstanding at year end outstanding at year end
20i4 2013

Amount % Amount o
Payments made duning maximum legal
limut 24 245 92,44% 29 469 75,38%
Remaining payments 1 983 7.56% 9622 24,62%
Total payments for the year 26 228 100 % 39.091 100 %
PMPE(*) (days) of payments 12 - 43 -
Deferrals exceeding maximum legal
himut at year end 59 - 30 -
Average payment period 21 - 35 -

(*) Werghted average days past due

The data shown In the table above regarding payments to suppliers refers to those payments from
consohidated Spanish group companes which by their nature have payables to suppliers of goods and
services These amounts are included in the relatve items under “Trade payables-Suppliers”, “Trade
payables-associate companies” and “Sundry payables” under current liabilittes n the consolidated balance
sheet

The weighted average days past due (PMPE) of payments is calculated as the ratio formed in the numerator
by the sum of the products of each of the payments made to suppliers in the year which were deferred
beyond thewr respective legally due times and the number of days by which the deferral exceeded the due
date, and in the denominator by the total amount of the payments made in the year which were deferred
beyond the legal due time

The maximum legal time applied to the Company according to Act 3/2004 of December 29, by which the
measures combating late payment in trade operations were set up, and in accordance with the transitory
dispositions set up by Act 15/2010 of July 5, 1s 30 days between January 1, 2014 and December 31, 2014,
and was 60 days in 2013

The negotiations regarding the quality of the product 1s the main cause for the deferrals as they are time-
consuming and the Company does not make payment unti an agreement Is reached with the supplier

Short-term accruals

Asset accruals manly cover insurance company expense relating to tracker manufactunng warranties
granted to fmal customers {generally 10 years), and to accruals relating to the mamtenance of solar
photovoltaic parks

Liabihity accruals mamly cover the amounts invoiced to final customers refating to the previously mentioned
manufactunng warranties and to accruals relating to the maintenance of solar photovoltaic parks
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20 Public authonties and tax situation
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The information regarding current balances with Public Authonties in the accompanying consolidated

balance sheet at 31 December 2014 1s as follows

20 1 Current balances with Public Authorities

Debtors balances
2014 2013
Tax Authority debtor for VAT 5623 5408
Tax Authonty debtor for corporate income tax 855 379
Other receivables 366 338
Total 6.844 6.125
Creditors balances
2014 2013
Tax authority creditor for VAT 676 153
Tax Authonty creditor for corporate income tax 1996 752
Social Security authorities creditors 74 69
Other payables 179 8§28
Total 2,925 1.802

In 2013 the Group transferred EUR 600 thousand charged to the item “Long-term provisions — other
provisions and with a credit to "Other payables with Public Authorities — other payables” as provision
for the settlement of taxes assocciated with the construction of certain solar parks which have been paid

In 2014

20.2 Reconciliation between the consolidated result and faxable base

The reconciliation between the consolidated result for the year and the taxable base for corporate

income tax Is set out below (in thousands of euros)

2014 2013
Consohdated result for the year {(before taxes) 8 690 15223
Permanent differences 159 {12 057)
Temporary differences
From consolidation adjustments (13 629) (6 419)
From individual compames 10 930 (5 547)
Taxable Base 6.150 (8.800)

Temporary and permanent adjustments mamly include adjustments denved from margins and
adjustments relating to operations between Group companes and from adjustments relating to the
portfolio Various companies of the group who have a similar tax address to the parernit company in
2014 have taken the tax regime for fiscal consolidation contaned in the Regional Law 24/1996 for
corporate income tax, with OPDE Investment Espaia as the parent company of the group
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The Regional Law 28/2014 of December 24 regarding corporate tax establshes, amongst other
matters, a tax reduction in corporate INcome tax to 25%, replacing the previous rate of 30% which was
in force until December 31, 2014 This has led to expense totaling EUR 707 thousand in 2014

At 31 December 2014 there are available tax losses amounting to EUR 17 429 thousand {EUR 22 817
thousand in 2013) of which EUR 2 115 thousand {(EUR 4 870 thousand in 2013) have been recognized
based on expectations of recovery (Note 20 5) Tax losses manly relate to fiscal logs in 2013 and 2012
whose application peniod 1s 15 and 14 years respechively

20 3 Reconcriiation between the accounting result and corporate income tax

The reconciliation between the accounting result and Corporate Income Tax expense 15 as follows (in
thousands of eurcs)

2014 2013

Result before tax 8.690 15,223
Permanent differences 9 (12057}
Tax rate applicable 1n each country 2.740 997
Deferred tax assets/hiabilities (*) 266 4 355
Adjustment for previous years settlements - “n
Other - 60

Total 3.006 5.321

(*} Includes the effect of updating deferred tax assets and habilities as a consequence of the change in
the tax rate stated in Note 20 2

20 4 Breakdown of current and deferred lax

The breakdown of current and deferred tax 1s as follows (in thousands of euros)

2014 2013
Current tax 2 156 1552
Deferred tax 850 3769
Total tax expense 3.006 5321

20 5 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax breaks down as follows

Thousands of euros
2014 2013
Deferred tax assets:
- Temporary differences and other 11671 10329
- Unused tax losses brought forward 529 1461
12 200 11.790

Deferred tax assets and liabilites are ofiset If at the time the Group has an enforceable night to offset
the amounts recognized and Intends to settle the net amount, or to realize the asset and settle the
lability simultaneously

Deferred tax assets are recognized for tax loss carryforwards to the extent that the realization of the
related tax benefit through future taxable profits of the Group 1s probable
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At 31 December, 2014 there are tax deductions pending application tataling EUR 3 139 thousand

(EUR 3 450 thousand in 2013)
20.6 Deferred tax habilities

The breakdown of deferred taxes 1s as follows

Thousands of euros

2014

2013

Deferred tax habihties:
- Temporary differences

(508)

(717)

(508)

(717)

20.7 Tax inspection and years pending inspection

Under current legislation, taxes cannot be deemed to have been definitively settled until the tax returns
filed have been inspected by the tax authonties or until the four-year-statute-cf-hmitations penod has
expired At 2014 year end the Group companies have 2009 and onwards open for review for corporate
tax and the last four years for the other main laxes applicable The Parent Company’s Directors
consider that the aforementioned taxes have been settled cormrectly and that, therefore, even
discrepancies arose with respect to its interpretation of current legislaion in ifs tax treatment of
transactions, any potental babiibes, should they anse, would not have a matenal effect on the
accompanying financial statements

In the opinion of the Parent Company’s Direclors and its tax advisors, transfer prices are adequately
supported and comply with the existing tax legislation Itis estimated that there are ne stgnificant risks in

this aspect of those resuling liabilities for future consideration far the Group

21 Income and expense

21 1 Revenue

Net turnover from the Group's ordinary activities may be analyzed geographically as follows

%
2014 2013
Domestic 14% 54%
Foreign 86% 46%
100% 100%

The breakdown of the net turnover for 2014 and 2013 by line of the activity 15 as follows

%
2014 2013
Sale of photovoltaic matenals 17% 26%
Assembly of trackers 1% 19%
Rendernng of services — turnkey 56% 15%
Sale of energy and other 26% 40%
100% 100%
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21 2 Procurement and supplies

The breakdown of "Supphes - Consumption of goods for resale and raw matenals” for 2014is as follows
(in thousands of euros)

2014 2013
Purchases 19 494 28 261
Changes 1n immventornies (816) 3 565
Consumption of goeds for resale and raw 18.678 31 826
materials

21.3 Personnel costs

The breakdown of “Personnel costs” in the consolidated income statement for 2014 and 2013 1s as
follows (In thousands of euros)

2014 2013
Wages, salanes and simular 3417 3950
Severance payments 372 220
Social security costs 758 951
Other 23 112
4.570 5233

As 15 indicated in Note 22 3, the Group has set up vanable long-term remuneration agreements with
certain employees based on reaching certain objectives

The average number of employees by category dunng the year was as follows

N° Persons
2014 2013
Management 10 17
Quahfied staff, specialists and admin 68 53
Sales staff 4 20
Skilled and unskilled workers 6 14
88 104

The average number of special needs employees 15 1 (1 1n 2013), In the category of skilled and
unskilled workers

The distribution by gender and category of the Group’s personnel at year end 1s as follows

2014 2013
Male | Female | Total Male | Women | Total
Management 4 - 4 12 2 14
Qualified staff, speciabsts and admin 33 23 56 35 27 62
Sales staff - - - 6 2 8
Skilled and unskilled workers 3 2 5 8 - 8
40 25 63 61 31 92
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21 4 Other operaling expense
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The heading “External services™ in the consolidated ncome statement for 2014 and 2013 basically
includes transport costs for photovoltaic matenals to pont of sale, insurance premiums and independent

professional services amangst others "

The Group has recorded an amount of EUR 370 thousand (EUR 397 thousand in 2013) relating to
charges on received lease payments (Note 10)

21 5 Impairment and results on disposals of fixed assets

Thousands of euros

2014 2013
Impairment:
Property, plant and equipment (Note 8) 169 963
Sub-total 169 963
Results on disposals:
Sales of companies (Notes 1 & 8) - (18 537)
Sales of property {Notes 1 and 8) - 67
Sales costs (Note 1) - 1 660
Other (Notas 5 y 6) (24) (1331}
Sub-total 24) (18.275)
Total 145 (17.312)

In 2014 the Group has received exceptional income amounting to EUR 251 thousand (EUR 667
thousand in 2013) from the nsurance company Reale for the acoidents and clams which occurred in
the parks in Greece in 2013 and 2012 and for which the Group bore the repair costs (Note 17)

22 Related-party transactions and balances

22.1 Related-party transactions

Related-party transactions are detaled below

Year 2014
Non-core and
Rendenag of other sundry External
services ncome services
Associates
Renter Gestiones, S L 192 4
Proyectos Integrales Solares, S L - 326
192 360

Year 2013
Non-core and
Rendenng of | other sundry External
SErvices necome Services
Asociadas
Renter Gestiones, S L 1170 2 (9
1170 2 )
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Rendering of services mainly relates to the mamntenance work carried out n the Almaraz park in

Extremadura

Services received relate mainly to maintenance work carried out in photovoltaic parks

Transactons exist with companies related to the Directors relating to management services rendered
in 2014, which total EUR 1 089 thousand (EUR 1 505 thousand in 2013) The breakdown 1s as follows

{thousands of euros)

Note 22 3 detalls the addtional agreements made with certain members of the Governing Body and

2014 2013

Solintel M&P, SL (Nota 22 3) 819 324
Aldrovi, S L 72 172
Jalasa Ingemeria, S L 72 211
Marearoja Internacional, S L. 72 182
Aste Consultores, S L 26 475
Agoranet 2000, SL 8 141

Total 1.069 1.505

Directors of the parent company

22.2 Related-party balances

The breakdown of related-party balances at year end 2014 1s as follows (in thousands of euros)

Year 2014

{*) From this amount total, EUR 326 thousand are included under the heading “ Trade — sales and services
rendered” 1n the consohdated balance sheet for 2014 and EUR 527 thousand under “Investments in associates and

Receivables | Payables and
and loans loans
granted recerved
Assoclates
Renter Gestiones, S L 299 -
Related-parties
Promnso Hellas, S A 1 (38)
Proyectos Integrales Solares, S L (*) 863 (5)
Pronso UK 11 -
Promso USA - 3)
Solmtel M&P, S L - (507)
1.174 (553)

related parties — Loans to compames™ 1 the consolidated balance sheet for 2014
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Year 2013
Recervables | Impairment § Payables and
and loans | of loans and loans
granted recervables received
Associates
Renter Gestiones, S L 339 - -
Related parties
Proyectos y Montajes Eléctricos Riosur, S L 1486 (1485) -
Solmtel M&P, S L - - (64)
Agoranet 2000, S L - - (25)
1.825 (1.485) (89)

22.3 Remuneration of the goverming body and senior management of the parent company

Remuneration of the governing body

The members of the Governing Body of the Parent Company have not accrued nor received any
remuneration in 2014 and 2013 In addiion, no advances, loans, pensions, retirement awards or special
indemnities have been granted

In additton the Company has set up vanable additonal remuneration agreements with certan Directors
of Grupo OPDE which are accruable on the basis of when one or varous transactions take place which
highlight an external assessment of the Group’s shares, or of the Group s subsichanes if an exchange
of treasury shares or owned assets occurs through external secunties or cash, including an increase In
capital with share premum At December 31, 2014 the heading “Short-term payables to Group
companies and associates” in the accompanying balance sheet records EUR 507 thousand which
corresponds to the best estimate of the amount accrued m 2014 for the agreements mention above
{Notes 22 1 & 22 2} In 2013 there were no accrued amounts for this concept

At December 31, 2014 the Group recorded a liability for EUR 2 138 thousand relating to commitments
from previous years with certain directors of Grupe OPDE and related parties which has been paid in
2014

The Group has analyzed the governing bodies of the Group 1n 2014 and has taken the decision to only
consider the Administrative Board as the Governing Body, as it 1s the Board which takes the most
important business decisions and analyzes the decisions taken by the Company s managers The
amounts accrued by companies related to the members of the Goverring Body for these management
services 15 detailed in Note 22 1 (there are no additional amounts accrued than those related parties
stated and broken down tn Note 22 1)

For information purpeses Aldrovi, SL, Jalasa, SL and Marearoja, S L are companies related to three
members of the Governing Body, and have rendered and billed therr services to the Parent Company
Mention 15 also made of the fact that Solintel M&P S L, Aste Consultores, S L, and Agoranet 2000, SL
are companies related to two other members of the Governing Body All these companies render
services to the Parent Company on the basis of signed agreements (See Note 22 1)

22 4 Information related to conflict of interest situations with Directors

At 2014 year end, nether the Joint Administrators of the Company nor persons related to them, in
accordance with Article 231 of the Company Capital Act have notified the Shareholders Meeting of any
conflict of mterest sHuation, either direct or indirect, which they may have with the interests of the
Company
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Environmental disclosures

In its overall operations the Group takes into account environmental protection laws {("environmental laws™)
The Group considers that it largely meets environmental regulatons and has procedures In place designed
to encourage and assure such compliance

The Group has taken the necessary measures to protect and improve the environment and to mimmize
environmental 1mpact, If applicable, m comphance with current environmental legislation In 2014 and
previous years, the Group has made no environmental investments and nor has it incurred expenses for the
protection and improvement of the environment In addition, it has not considered it necessary to establish a
provision for environmental labiities and charges since there are no contingencies related to the
environmental protection and improvement of environmental labilives

Other information
24 1 Contingencies

Contingent abilities

The Group has no contingent liabilities ansing in the ardinary course of business which are expected to
tngger significant habilities

Bank guarantees

The Group has guaraniees with third parties connected with solar facihties amounting to EUR 99
miflion (EUR 7 5 millien in 2013) relating mainly to the guaraniees on the provisional receipt of the
photovoltaic facilites built and guarantees vis-&-vis municipal authorities for work to be carned out

24 2 Guarantees

I Guarantees under sales contracts and completion of solar facihties (tum-key)

The Group guarantees the reparr of any defects and flaws in the execution and termination of the
construction works on the solar plants, provided that they are directly attnbutable to such works, for two
years following the final delivery of the plant

The warranty borne by the Group with respect to the products and matenals supplied for the
construction of the plants will be made up of and limited to the warranty granted by the manufacturers
of such materials Addiionally, the Group offers an assembly warranty, although at the present date
there 1s no experience concerning warranty expenses

i) Warranty under contracts for sale of modules

The Group offers all customers a standard warranty certificate for photovoltaic modules which includes
a warranty for material er manufacturing defects and a power guarantee

The Group guarantees that its matenals and manufacturing are free of any defects that hinder normal
operatton In cofrect condiions of use, assembly and maintenance for the first two years for the
modules, five years for electronic equipment and 10 years for the solar tracking system Otherwise, the
Group undertakes to replace or reparr the defective moduie

As from the date of sale of the modules, the Group guaranitees munumum exit power (n accordance with
the contract's techrical specifications
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At the year end the Group recards no provistons for these warranties since there 1s no significant
expenence n this respect and taking into account that the warranties provided by the Group’s part

manufacturers would sufficiently cover any mcident

24 3 Auditors fees

In 2014 auditors fees retated to account audinng services and other services rendered by the auditor of
the consolidated annual accounts of the Group, Deloitte, S L, and by companies belonging to the
Delotte network, as well as fees for services rendered on the individual annual accounts of
consolidaled companies and companies related by control, joint ownership or management The

breakdown is as follows(in thousands of euros)

Year 2014
Account auditing Other services
Deloiite 96 143
Total 96 143
Year 2013
Account auditing Other services
Deloatte 110 93
Total 110 93
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24 4 Segmented information

Financial information of the Group by operating segment as at 31 Decernber 2014 15 as follows

60

Thousands of euros

Sale of Rendenng of

photovoltaic | Assembly of | services— |Sale of energy | Consolidation
Item matenals trackers turn-key and other adjustments | Consolidated
Revenue
- External clients 12 639 798 41 705 19 074 - 74 516
- Inter-segmental 1191 427 1375 - (2 991) 2
Procurements (12 825) (662} (24 213) (261) 4 167) (42 128)
Personnel expense (550) {1 145} (2 875) - - (4 570)
Degpreciation of fixed assets 4 (284) (303) (6 932) 1 630 {5 930)
Losses, impairment and changes in
provisions
- Currenat (996) 239 (13 974) (3 443) 7157 (11017
- Non-current 51 244 514 (2 654) 2 551 706
Operating result (23D (383) 2.229 5.784 4.180 11.579
Financial income 207 77 6 834 44 (3 844) 3318
Financial expense (192) )] (5510 (9 503) 9 005 (6 207)
Result of continued operations (216) (313) 3.553 (3.675) 9,341 8.690
Pre-tax result (216} (313) 3553 (3.675) 9341 8 690
Segment assets 3579 189 049 176 354 (171 313) 197 669
Segment habilities 2229 64 126 165 761 (98 565) 133 551
Net cash flows of activities (*)
- Operating 334 318 @37 5111 (228) 5498
- Investng - - 9100 - 1 637 10737
- Financing (6 941) (840) (4 540) (4 121) 2196 {14 246)

(") The net cash fiows i each segment only include the most representative company in the segment

The information recorded in each of the segments relates to the results of the Group companies which

develop such activities

In accordance with existing legislation, transactions between Group companies are carrred out at

market prices

Sales by the Group in Spam total EUR 10 647 thousand (EUR 29 752 thousand in 2013), in the
Eurcpean Umion they total EUR 63 871 thousand (EUR 15 646 thousand tn 2013} and n the rest of the
world they total EUR 0 thousand (EUR 9 716 thousand in 2013}

In the segment “Sale of photovoltaic matenals”, the 30 most significant clients make up approximately
82% (63% in 2013) of the mcome of the business unit In the segment “Rendening of services - turn-
key", the clients are very fragmented

In 2014 the sales in the segment “Sale of energy” have basically been carned out through two agents,
which represent 3% and 14% respectively of net revenue in 2014

Annexes | and |l detail the Subsidiary compames included in the consolidation scope, both group and

associates
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Annex I- Subsidanies and associate compantes at December 31, 2014

Shareholding
% par
Name and location Activity value Group company holder Auditor
OPDE Particpacones  Industnales, SL. Pramoton and development of -
(Fustiiana, Navarra) comparies 100%  OFDE Investment Espafia, 5 L. -
Ofras Producciones de Energla Fotovoltzica, Manufacture and sale of solar ~
SL - (Navarra) trackers 100%  OPDE invesiment Espafia, 5 L. Deloitte
PV Integral Management, § L. (Espafia) Rendennyg of services o0 g DC onieReciones Industriales, )
Edlica la Lora, S L. - (Navarra) OPDE Parboipacianes tndustnales,
Includes 25 SPVs for energy sale Operating of photovoltaic parks 100% SL Deloiita
Mecanizados Solares, § L. - (Navarra) Manutaclute and sale of solar 100%  OPDE Investment Espafia, § L Deloitie
Grupo Solar Basico Delta 2, SL - (Fustifiana, QPDE Participaciones industnales,
Navarra) Sale of energy 100% S| Celaitte
Promotion, manufacture and sale of (OPDE Paricipaciones Industriales,
QPDE Extremadura, S L - (Navarra) photovaltaic faclilles 100% sL -
Promation, manufacture and sale of GSB Gamma 2, S L. (9%%)
OPDE India Solar 1 Private Ltd (India} photovaltale faciities 100% GSB Omega2, S L (1%) -
Cantiliana Fatovoltaica, S L. (Navarra) Sale of energy 100% gPLDE Partiipaciones Industiales, Deloitte
Pramoton, manufacture and sale of
Mecasotar US, Lic (USA) photovalltak: facities 100%  Mecantzados Solares, S L. -
Promoconies  Fotovoltaicas  Juglans, S.L QPDE Participaciones Industriales,
{Fustiana, Navara} Sale of energy 100% o Deloitta
Promociongs  Folovoltaicas  Juniperus, St OPDE Partcipaciones Indusirales,
(Fustiiana, Navarra) Sale of energy 00 o) Deloitia
Promociones  Folovoltacas  Laurus, SL OPDE Parlicipaciones Industriales,
(Fustifana, Navarra) Sale of energy 100% Sl Deloitis
Promociones  Fotowoltacas  Pinus, SL OPDE Participaciones indusiriales,
{Fustians, Nevarra) Sale of energy 00% o Delotte
Elogia Trans Ling, S LU (Navarra) Sale of energy 100% gEDE Parteipaciones tndusinales, Delaitte
Ribaforada 10 Sr1 - (Turin, aly} Sale of energy 100%  OPDE Investment Espafia, S L -
Pramotion, manutacture and sale of
Mecasolar Hellas, A E. - (Greece) pholovaliaic faciilies T0% Mecanizados Solares, S L Cther
Sociedad |bénca de Generaciin de Energia OPDE Participaciones Industnales,
Fotovoltaica X\ {Navarra) Sale of energy 0% gy, :
Grupo Valsingula, S L. - (Navara)
Inchudes 230 companies wihout acivty Operating of photovoltaic parks 100%  OPDE Investment Espafia, S L -
Sociedad [bénca de Generacidn de Enemia OPDE Participaciones Indusinales,
Fatovoliaica XVIl {Navarra) Sale of energy 100% g :
Ribaforada 7 Sl - {Turin, lialy) Sale of energy 100%  OPDE Investment Espafia, § L. -
Premabion, manufacture and sale of
Render Energlas Renovables, S A. (Céceres) photovolaic facities 51% OPDE Invesiment Espafia, S L. -
Promotion, manufacture and sale of OPDE Participacicnes Indusinales,
Opde Levante, S L - {Valencla) photovoliar: fackites 100% SL. -
OPDE Solare, Sr1 - (lialy) Promation, manufacture and sale of
photovolaic fachies 60%  OPDE ltaly,Sri -
OPDE Pugla, Srl. - {ltaly) Bale of enargy 60% OPDE Solare, Sl -
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Shareholding
% par
Name and location Activity value Group company holder Auditor

Salare Pugha, Sri - {kaly) Sale of energy 60% QPDE Sotare, 511 -
OPOE Solare, St - {ltaly) Promaticn, manufacture and sale of

photovoltaic facilities 4% OpdeInvestment SL )
QPDE Puglia, St | - (ltaly) Sale of energy 40% Opda Investment, S L. -
Solare Puglia, S - (lialy) Sale of energy 40% Opde Investment, S L -
Opde Hellas, E P E - (Gresce) Eﬁgﬂ?&ﬂﬂ;ﬁm andsadeod oo OPDE Investment Espafia, S L .
Almaraz Folovoltaiga X0V, SL {Navarra) Sale of energy 100% CS)T_DE Parucipacianes Industriles, -
Ribaferada 3 Sri - (Tunn, haty) Sale of energy 100°%  OPDE Investment Espafia, S L. -
Piemonte Eguzki 2 S ri - (Mian, lzly) Sale of enargy 100%  OPDE Investment Espafia, S L. -
Antigali 1, Srl {ltaly) Promation of parks 100% (S)PLDE Partepaciones Indusinales, -
Antigall 9, Sri (ltahy} Promation of parks 100% giDE Parteipaciones Industales, -
Antigalr 6, Srl (ltaly) Promotion of parks 100% gtDE Partcipaciones Indusissles, -
Antgali 7, S L {ltaly) Pramotion of parks 100% giDE Partcipaciones Industnales, -
OPOE ttaly, S 1 - {taly) tisheitnl g andsdol 4004 OPDE Investment Espafia, SL Delotte
Chi GOneg Enerpisi Elekirik Uretim Va Ticaret (38R Gamma 2, S L. (50%)
Limied Sirket (Turkey) Promotian of parks 100%  Gea Omega 2, 5 L. (50%) -
Epsion Gines Enemisi Elektrk Uretim Ve (G5B Gamma 2, S L. (50%) _
Ticarat Limited Sirkel (Turkey) Promalion of parks 0%  GSBOmega2, 5L (50%)
lota Giineg Ener|isi Elekink Uretm Ve Ticaret GSB Gamma 2, S L. (50%)
Licuted Srked {Turkey) Promotian of parks 100% o Omega2, SL. (50%) :
Kappa GOnes Enemsi Elekiric Uretm Ve GSB Gamma 2, § L {50%)
Ticares Limited $irket {Turkey) Promalion of parks 100% 9B Omega2, SL. (50%) .
Lambda GOnes Enerjisi Elekink Uretim Va GSB Gamma 2, S L. {30%) R
Ticaret Limited Shket (Turkey) Promolian of parks 100% G5B Omega 2, S L (50%)
Omcron Gines Enemwsi Elektrk Urebm Ve (GSB Gamma 2, § L. (50%)
Ticaret Limied Sirket {Turkey) Promotion of parks 0% 5op Omega 2, S L {50%) -
Psi Ganeg Enerfls! Elekink Uretim Ve Ticaret G5B Gamma 2, S L (50%) ;
Limited Sitkels (Turkey) Promoticn of pars 100%  G5EOmega2, SL. (50%)
Rho Gineg Enenjis Elekirk Uretim Ve Ticaret GSB Gamma 2, S 1. (50%) A
Limited Srket {Turkey) Pramation of parks 100% 38 Omega 2, SL. (50%)
Tau Gineg Enenel Eletdrik Uretm Ve Ticaret GSB Gamma 2, 8 L (50%} )
Limted Siketl (Turkey) Promaton of parks 100% 5B Omega2, L. (50%)
Theta Glneg Enerjisi Elekink Uretim Ve Ticaret Promotion of parks 100% GSB Gamma 2, § L. (50%}

Limited Sirketr (Turkey)

GSBOmega 2, SL (50%)
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Shareholding
% par
Name and location Acthity value Group company holder Auditor

Almaraz Fotovoltaica X000X, S L (Navama) Operating of photavoltaic parks 1006 giDE Parcipaciones Indusinales, -
Almaraz Folovoltaica X000, S L (Navara) ~ Operating af photovolteic parks 100% CS)EDE Parlicipaciones Industiales, -
Proyectos y Montajes Electncos Riosur, S.L. Pramobon, manufacture and sale of " )
(Badajoz) phatovoltaic faciities 40%  OPDE Investment Espafiz, S.L
Tordesillas Solar FV 11, SL. - (Benipamel, Sale of energy 100% OPDE Participaciones Industrizles, )
Valencia) SL
Tordesllas Solar FV 12, SL - (Benparel, Sale of energy 100% OPDE Participaciones Indusiriales, _
Valencia) 5L
I'orl'des]lﬂ?s Solar FV13, SL - (Benpame!, $ale of energy 100% OPDE Partiapaciones Industriales, _

Blencia SL
Tordesilas Solar FV14,SL - (Bemparel, Sale of energy 100% OPDE Paricipaciones Industnales, _
Valencla) SL
I,ggﬁz:g:)as Solar FV15, SL - (Benlparrel, Sale of energy 100% ;)PLDE Participaciones. Indusinales, _
\Tlml'dr;e;ﬂlas Solar FV 16, SL. - {Bemparel, Sala of energy 100% OPDE Participaciones Industnales, :

alencia) SL
Lcril[u;cesllllas Solar FV17, SL. - (Benpamel, o energy 100% QOPDE Partcipaciones Industriales, ;

alencia) SL
Enrgﬁsilﬂas Solar FV18 SL - (Benlparrel, Sale of energy 100% QPDE Pancipaciones Industnales, _

alencia) SL
Lg:gﬁz:g?s Solar FV19, SL - (Benpamel, Sale of eneray 100% (S)PLDE Paricipaciones Industnales, )
L(;Irgiilg?s Solar FV20, SL - {Beniparel, Sale of energy 100% sll’_DE Participacicones Industnales, R
Almaraz Foiovotaica XL, § L. (Navarra) Operating of photovaltaic parks too  Or O Pariepaciones Industnales, .
Almaraz Fotovotiaica XL, § L. (Navarra) Operating of photovoltaic parks 100% gPLDE Paricipaciones Industriales, .
focidion de Inlciativas Sostenbies . L. Operatng of pholavolaic parks 100%  OPDE Investment Espafla, SL .
onst ce nkaas Sasienbles V. SL. - Operating of pholovoliaic parks 100%  OPDE Investment Espafia, SL -
GSB Gamma 2, SL (Navarra) Promotion of parks 100% g':_DE Participaciones Industnales, -
GSBlota 2, SL (Navama) Pramotion of parks toos QPO Pertepocones Industrates, .
GSB Kappa 2, S L (Navara) Promotion of parks 0w o DF Paneipediones Indusinales, ;
GSB Lambda 2, SL (Navara) Promotion of parks 100% gtDE Partpacanes Industnales, -
GSB Omicron 2, S L {Navarra) Promotion of parks 100% giDE Partopaciones industriales, -
Gamma Solar S De Rl De Cv {Mexco) Promotion of parks f00%  Gop laree s (Lﬂ{fg" -
Garambulo Solar  De Rl De Cv (Mexco) ~ Pramation of parks oo o0 Lanbds %‘%'L ((55%:)) .
(S8 Omega 2, S L (Navarra) Promation of parks t00% O DE Panicpaciones Industriales, ;
Lambda Salar  De Rl De Cv (Mexco) Promoion of parks o0 oob cambda %’;_‘é'&’} .
Rho Solar § De Rl De Cv (Mexico) Promotion of parks 100  GSBKappa2 § L. (50%) .

GSBlota2, SL (50%)
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Shareholding
% par
Name and location Activity value Group company holder Auditor
GSB Kappa 2, S L (50%)
Theta Solar S De Rl De Cv {Mexico} Pramotion of parks 100% GSBlata 2, S L. (50%) -
Promobon, manufaciure and sale of
Renler Gestianes, S L (Navama) phatoveltarc facilites 24% Opde Extremadurs, 5 L. -
Promotian, manufacture and sale of OPDE Participaciones Industnales,
Opde O&M, S L - (Navarra) phowvolaic faciilies W gy :
Promaotion, manufacture and sale of
OPDE Investment US Corp {USA) photovohiat facTibes 1010%  OPDE Investment Espafia, 5 L -
Promation, manufacture and saka of "
QPDE USA, LLC - (USA) photovaliai: facities 100% OPDE Investmeni Esparia, 5 L. -
INVERSIONES SOLARES DEL ALTIPLANO, ;2?;‘};2%"&“@3,%35
SRL DECV (Mexico} Pramation of parks 100% Tarolensa de Inversiones -
Sostenibles S L (50%)
ELEGTRICIDAD FOTOVOLTAICA OPDE' Particlpaciones Industriales
ARGENTUM, S RL DECV (Mexlco) Promation of parks 100% SL {50%) -
GSB Omicron 2 8§ L. (500}
ENERGIA SOLAR DE PONIENTE, SRL DE QPDE’ Pariicipaciones Industiates
C V(ltaly) Pramiotion of parks 100%  SL {50%) -
GSBlola2SL {50%)
INFRAESTRUCTURA  ENERGETICA DEL OPDE' Participaciones Indusinales
NORTESRL DECV  (laly] Promotion of parks 100% SL ([ 50%} .
558 Kappa 281 (50%}
INVERSIONES Y PROMOCIONES SOLARES
OPDE' Pariupacicnes Industrialas
DEL CEMTRO, SRL DE CV [Méwca) Promotian of parks 100% SL [50%) .
GSB lambda 2 5L (50%)
SOLEIL FOTOVOLTAICA, SAPI DE CV OPDE' Participaciones Indusirales
(México) Promation of parks 100  SL (50%) -
Tordesiliag Solar FV 11 5 L. (50%)
INFRAESTRUCTURA  ENERGETICA DEL OPBE' Participaciones industriales
OESTE, SA.PI DE CV (México) Promatian of parks 100° 5L (50%) -
Tordesillas Solar FV 12 S L (50%)
PROMOCIONES SOLARES MW, SAP| DE OPDE Participaciones Industriales
' SL.{50%)
CV (México) Promatian of parks 100%  Toresilas Solar FV 135 L. (50%) .
PROMOCION FOTOVOLTAICA VALLADOLID, gPLD(E;g;r,ﬂupacmnes Industnates
SAPI DECV (México) Pramotion of parks 100% Tordesillas Solar FV 14 § L. (50%) -
OPDE' Participaciones Industnales
SOLAR DE LA SIERRA, SAPI OE CV 5L (50%)
{Mexico) Promalion of parks 100%  Tordesitas Solar FV 155 L (50%) -
ENERGIA FOTOVOLTAICA MIRAFLORES, gt”gg;?’”pad"“es Industriales
SAP| DECV (Méuco) Promation of parks 100% Tordesilas Solar FV 16 S L (50%) -
OPDE BRASIL GENERACAO DE ENERGIA
OPDE Fotovoltaica SLU {99%)
LTD (Brazily Pramaotion of parks 100%% OPDE Investment Espafia S L. [1%)
ALPHA SOLAR LIMITED (UK} Promotion of parks 100% giDE Paricipaciones Industriales )
BETA SOLAR LIMITED (UK) Promotin of parks 100°% gPLDE Participaciones Industnales B
GAMMA SOLAR LIMITED (UK} Pramotion of parks 100% (s)tDE Paricipaciones Industriales _
DELTA SOLAR LIMITED (UK} Pramotion of parks 100% SFI’PE Particlpaclones Industriales R
EPSILON SCLAR LIMITED (UK} Pramolion of parks 100% OPDE Participaciones Industriates A
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Shareholdng
% par
Name and location Actraty value Group company holder Auditor
10TA SOLAR LIMITED (UK} Pramation of parks 100% gl:-DE Participaciones Industnales R
KAPPA SOLAR LIMITED (UK} Promation of parks 1o O DF Periapaciones Industnales .
LAMBDA SCLAR LIMITED {UK) Promotion af parks 100% gFI’_DE Participaciones Industnales .
Opde UK, tmited (UK} Park constnuction o OFDE Pariapzcones Indishaes
Haymaker Mountmil, Limited (UK) Park construction tos QD Peripacones tdustrales,
GAMMA SUM RENEWABLE ENERGY INDIA QPDE' Participaciones Industnales
Lid {India) Promotion of parks 100%  SL.[99%) -
GSB Gamma ZSL.(1%)
OMEGA SUN RENEWABLE ENERGY INDIA OPDE' Partcipaciones Industnales
Lid (India} Pramotian of parks 100%  SL(99%%) -
GSBOmega 2S5 L (1%)
GRUPO SOLAR BASICOBETA 1SL (Span)  Promotion of parks 100%  MECANIZADCS SOLARES S L -
MECASOLAR ESPANA SL (Spain) Promation of parks 100%  MECAMIZADOS SOLARES 5 L. -
Puchase-sale of matenals and other
Proyecios Integrales Solares, S L, - (Navarma) photovoltaic sectar felated actiles 100%  OPDE Invesiment Espafia, SL Delaliie
Piemonte Eguzki 6 S rl - (Milan, ltaly} Sale of energy 100f%  OPDE Investment Espaiia, S L. -
Promotion, manufaciure and sale of
Promnso US, LL C - {USA) photovoltac faclives 100%  Proyectos Integrales Solares, S L -
Antgali 10, S 11 (Htaly) Pramaton of perks fog o7 D= Pertcipacianes Industrizles, -
AntgaliB, S 1 {taly) Promation of parks 100% g DE Pariopaciones ndustrales, .
Anbgali 4, Sl (ltaly) Prometion of parks 100% giDE Participaciones Indusinales, -
Antigall 5, S 1 {laly) Promotion of parks foo%  OFDE Patchecines industiales,
Puchase-sale of matarals and ather
Proinso ltaly, S rL - {italy) photovaltakc secior retated activies 100%  Provecios Integrales Solares, 5 L -
Pramotion, manufacture and sale of
Preinso Deutschland GmbH (Germany) pholovohaic faciites 100%  Proyecios Integrales Solares, S L. -
Promso UK Ltd (UK) Promation, manufacture and sale of o0 proyactss Integrales Solares, SL. .

photovoltaic faciives
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Annex [l — Subsidiary and associate companies at December 31, 2013

% par
Name and location Actraty value Group company holder Auditor
QPDE Investment Espafia, S L
OPDE  Participacones  Industriales, SL Promoton and development af 100% {72,25%) R
(Fusliiana, Navara) companies Ofras Productiones da Energla
Fotovoltaxca, S L (27,75%)
Otras Producciones de Energla Folovoltaka, Manufacture and sale of solar
SL - {Navarra) rackers 100%  OPDE Investment Espafia, S L. Delotte
Edlicala Lora, S L. - (Navarma) OPDEParticipaciones Industnales,
Inciudes 25 SFV& sale of energy Operating of photavoltalc parks 100% SL Deloitle
Mecanizados Solares, S L - {Navarra) Marufacure and sale of solr 100%  OPDEtnvesimentEspaie, SL  Delatie
Geupa Solar Basico Detta 2, S L - {Fustfiana, OPDE Parlicipacines
Navarra) Sale of energy 100% Industnales, SL Delaitie
Promation, manufacture and sale of OPDE Parficipaciones
Opde Extremadura, S L - (Badajoz} photovolaic faciiles 100%  Adusinales, S L. :
Pramation, manufaciure and sale of GSB Gamma 2, SL (50%)
CFDE India Scta: 1 Privale Lid (India} pholovolaic facities W% 58 0mega2 SL. (50%) .
OPDE Parlicipacknes
Cantillana Fotovoltaca, S L {Navarra) Sale of energy 100% Industales, § L. -
Promation, merufaciure and sale of
Mecasolar US, Lic (USA) photovaltarc faclites 100%  Mecanizados Solares, SL -
Puchase-sale of materials and other -
Proyectos Integrales Solares, § L - (Navarra) photavoliale seclor related acliviles 100%  OPDE Investment Espafia, S L Deloitte
Promociones  Fotovoltaxcas  Juglans, S.L CPDE Parboipaciones
(Fustiiana, Navarra) Sele of energy 100% Industrales, S L. Delaitie
Promociones  Fotovoltacas Juniperus, S.L OPDE Parlicipacienes
(Fustiana, Navarra) Sale of energy 100%  |ndusmales, 5L, Delotte
Promoclones  Fotowoltacas  Laurus, SL OFDE Participaciones
{Fustifiana, Navarra) Sale of energy 100% Industnates, SL. Deloltte
Promocones  Fotovoltaicas  Prus,  SL OPDE Partiopaciones
{Fustifana, Navarra) Sale of energy 100re Industriales, S L. Detoitie
OPDE Participaciones
Elogia Trans Une, S LU {Navarra) Sale of energy 100% tndustnales, S L. -
Ribafarada 10 Sr1 - (Turln, ltaly} Sale of energy 100%  OPDE Investment Espaiia, SL -
Promation, manufacture and sale of
Macasolar Hellas, A E - (Greece) photovollaic faciites 0% Mecanizados Solares, S L Other
Sociedad Ibénca de Generacn de Enemla (OPDE Participaciones
Fotovoltaica XVI {Navarra) Sale of energy 100% Industnales, 5L N
Grupo Valsingula, S L. - (Navarra)
Incudes 266 withad! acimty Qperating af photovollaic parks 100%  OPDE investment Espaiia, 5 L -
Socledad Ibanca do Generacibn de Energia OPDE Participacianes
Fotovoltaca XVl (Navarta) Sale of energy W% ngusiales, SL -
Ribaforada 7 Sl - (Tunin, ltaly) Sate of energy 100%  OPDE Investment Espafia, S L .
Promotion, manufacture and sale of =
Render Energlas Renovables, S A. (Céceres) phetovoliaic faciies 51% OPDE Investment Espafia, SL. -
Promation, manufacture and sale of OPDE Participaciones
Opde Levanie, 5L - (Velencia} photovoltaic faciilies 0% jrgustnales, S L -
Promabon, manufacture and sale of
Proinso Hellas, A E - (Greece) photovoltaic faciities 0% Proyectos Integrales Solares, S L -
Piemonle Eguzki 6 S 11 - (Mian, Raly) Sale of energy 100%  OPDE Investment Espafia, S L. -
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% par
Name and location Activity value Group company holder Auditor
Prolnsa US, L L C - (USA) g;';,;}g:::;;gg;:{gm 5220 yoo%  Proyectos Integrales Salares, 5L -
Promeoton, manufacre and sale of
OPDE Solare, Sr! -(laly) phatovallalc facilfies 60% OPDE ltaly, Sl -
Opde Helas, E P E - (Greece) Pramation, manufactre and safe of  gne  OPDE fvestment Espafia, S L .
photovoltaic faciities
OPDE Pariiipaciones
Almaraz Fotovoltaica YooKV, S L {Navara) Sale of energy 100% Industrisles, § L -
Ribaforada 3 St - {Turin, ltaly} Sale of energy 100  OPDE Investment Espafia, SL. -
Piemonte Eguzkl 2 Sl - (Mién, ltaly) Sale of energy 100%  OPODE Invesiment Espafia, St -
OPDE Parizpacanes
Antigal 1, St (ltaly} Promation of parks 100% | dustr ales, L -
OPDE Parttcipaciones
Anligat 10, S 11 (italy) Promotion of parks 100%  jndustnales, S L :
OPDE Particpaciones
Antigali 9, Sri (ltaly) Framotion of parks 100% Industrizles, S L. -
OPDE Partizipaciones
Ariigali6, S 1 {ltaly) Promotion of parks 100%  |ngustriales, S L. .
(QPDE Participaciones
Antigali 7, Sr 1 (ltaly) Pramation of parks 1006 |docmales, S"L -
OPDE Participaciones
Antgali 8, Srl {ltaly) Promotion of parks L T setriales, S 1. -
CPDE Parti¢ipaciones
Antgali 4, Srl (ltaly) Promation of parks 100% Industriales, S L. -
OPODE Participaciones
Antigalt 5, St (ltaly} Promotion of parks 100% Industriales, S L -
Puchase-sale of matenals and other
Froinso lialy, S 11 - (taly) photovoltaic sector refated aciivibies 100% Proyecios Integrales Solares, S L. B
OPDE ltaly, S| - (lahy) Eﬁ'{;’é"ﬁ:;c"f‘:;‘l’l:;‘;m andsaleo!  yuw  OPDE InvestmentEspafia, SL Deloite
Promotion, manufaciure and sale of
OPDE Pugla, S11 - (llaly) photevoltaic faclfies 6%  OPDE Solare,Srl B
Promation, manufacture and sale of
Solare Puglia, Sr | - {llaly) photavohiaic facllties [ili OPDE Solare, 511 -
Chi Giines Enemsl Elekink Uretm Ve Ticaret GSB Gamma 2, S L {50%)
Limitad Sirket (Turkay) Promotion of parks 100% 5B Omega 2, SL (50%) -
Epsion Gines Eners: Elekink Uretim Ve GSB Gamma 2, S L. {50%) )
Ticaret Limited Suketi {Turkey) Promation of parks 100% 3B Omega 2,5 L. (50%)
lota Giineg Enensi Elektnk Uretim Ve Ticaret G5B Gamma 2, § L. (50%) }
Limited Sirked (Turkey) Prormotion of parks 0% G5B Omega 2, SL (50%)
Kappa GOnes Enerjisi Elekirik Uretim Ve G5B Gammaz, SL (50%) A
Ticaret Limiad ket Turkey) Promatin of parks 100% G5B Omega 2, 5 L. (50%)
Lambda Gines Enemsi Elektnk Uretm Ve GSB Gamma 2, 5L (50%) N
Ticaret Limited Sirket] (Turkey) Prometion of parks 100% G5B Omega2, S L (50%)
Omicron Goneg Enedjisi Elektnk Lretm Ve Pramodon of parks 100% GSB Gamma 2, § L. (50%)

Ticare! Limited Sirketi {Turkey)

G5B Omega 2, S L. (50%)
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Name and location Activity zr‘ar:; Group company holder Auditor
E;\jmggn;?k ml?k ;E;?kmk Uretm Ve Ticarel 5 oo o parks 100% ggg ga;nn;g;af. gt(%} )
oot Soi (ot e Promalon ofprs 100 S Omegaz, SL (%) :
Lrn\?nxzd Ggﬁﬁ'}iﬁ‘i Slektnk Uretm Ve Ticaret po oo o parks 100% Sgg g%rg;n:zlf. sslft(sﬁl _
Almaraz Fotovoltaica X0X4X, S L. (Navama) Operating of photovoltalc parks 100% ﬁgﬁiﬂi@ﬁ?’gaﬁo"% -
Almaraz Fotovottaica OOVIL S L. (Navar2)  Operating of photovoltaic parks 100% %&%ﬂfg?""es .
:’Brgdyzcﬁ? y Montajes Electricos Riosur, SL :’hrgntxgclz;;cnf\:gt[ﬁcsmre and sale of 40% OPDE [vestment Espafia, § L. ;
oy Solar FV M. 8L - (Benparel,  gug ot energy 100%  OPDE Investment Espafia, § L .
$:Eﬁ2:g?s Scfar FV12, SL - (Benipamel, 3ale of energy 100% OPDE Investment Espafia, S L. -
L‘;Tgﬁ:]al?s Solar FV13, SL - (Beniparrel, Sale of energy 100% OPDE Investment Espafia, S L -
oo Solar FVI4SL - {Benlpael. gy of energy 100%  OPDE Investment Espafia, § L .
Lg;::z;g)as Solar FV15, SL - (Bempamel, o, energy 100%  OPDE Investment Espaia, S L -
If:;‘:sz:g)as Sclar FV16, SL. - {Beniparrel, Sale of energy 100%  OPDE Investment Espafia, S L. .
I,:Eﬁcsl"al?s Solar FV17, SL. - (Benpamel, ooy, of energy 100%  OPDE Invesiment Espafia, S L -
Vo Solor FV18 8L - (Benpamel e of energy 100%  OPDE Investmeni Espafa, S L .
omed Solar FV19, SL. - (Benpam) .y ot anergy 100%  OPDE mvestment Espafia, S L .
I,‘;;g:'g:‘;'s Solar FV20, SL. - (Benpamel. - gy, o gnergy 100%  OPDE Investment Espafia, S L. .
Almaraz Fotovoltalca XL, 5L {Navarra) Operating of photovoltaic parks 100% ﬁs&fﬂ:ﬂgicmes -
Amaraz Fotovotaica XLI, S L (Navarra) Operating of photavoliaic parks 100% ﬁg&iﬂgf‘gf‘”m .
?l\;z?r:nn:a de Iniclatvas Sastenibies M, SL. QOperating of pholovoliai parks 100%  OFDE Investment Espafia, S L -
{S:f::;’ de Iniciaivas Sostenibles [V, SL Operating of photovaltaic parks 100%  OPDE Investment Espafia, S L -
GSB Gamma2, § L (Navarra) Promatian of parks 100% ﬁg&ﬁfﬁfﬁgﬁ"‘“““ -
GSBlota 2, § L (Navama) Promotian of parks 100% ﬁ;’ii’;?;‘fjgf“"es -
GSB Kappa 2, SL. (Navara) Promation of parks 100% P;ii:ﬂf‘é’f”“es .
(GSB Lambda 2, 5 L (Navarra) Praomotion of parks 100% gsi%gﬁspimm -
GS8 Omieran 2, § L. (Navarra) Promobon of parks 100% %&%ﬁgﬁg"fnﬁ R
Gamma Sofar § De Rl De Cv (Mexo) Promation of parks 100% ggg :ﬁg"; éf ("50‘.,5“;%‘ -
Garambulla Solar S De RI De Cv (Mexica} Pramotion of parks 100% GS8Lambda2 SL (50%) -

(358 Omicron 2, 5 L. (50%)
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Name and location Activity value Group company holder Auditor
(SB Omega2, SL (Navara) Promotion of paks fow  DFOEPerlopacons -
Lambda Solar S De R Da Cy (Mexco) Promation of parks 100% oo E‘;“glf‘zz i ((5500?,,‘2) .
Rho Solar § De Rl De Cv (Mexica) Pramoton of parks ook So0 KRS s ;g[ﬁ“’ .
Theta Sclar § De Rl De Cv (Mexico) Pramaton of parks 00% o Kappa 25 (';10%(5‘;*’ .
Promotion, manufacture and sale of
Renter Gestiones, S L. (Navarra) phoiovolizic facies 24% Opde Extremadura, SL. -
Promation, manufacture and sale of
OPDE Investment US Corp (USA) pholavoliaic faciites 100% OPDE Investment Espafla, SL -
Promotion, manufacture and sale of
OPDEUSA, LLC - (USA) photouhiarc faclilles 100% OPDE Investment Espafia, S L. -
Promotion, manufacture and sale of
Proinso Deutschiand GmbH (Germany) photovolaic facikbes 100%  Proyectos Integrales Solares, S L -
Promation, manufacture and sala of
Proinso UK Lid (UKY phatovolaic faciities 1004 Prayectos tnlegrales Solares, SL -
Promation, manufacture and sale of OPDE Paricpacones
Opde O&M, S 1. - (Navarta) pholovoltarc facillties W% yagusiiates, S L -
INVERSIONES SOLARES DEL ALTIPLANG, ;ﬁggft“@gﬁs
SRL DECV (México) Promotien of parks 100% Turolense de Inversiones -
Sostenibles S L (50%)
ELECTRICIDAD FOTOVOLTAICA QPOE' Paricipaciones
ARGENTUM, S R L. DE C V (México) Promation of parks 100% Indusiriales S L. (50%) -
GSB Dmcron 2 S L. (50%)
ENERGIA SOLAR DE PONIENTE, SRL DE OPDE’ Participaciones
C V (Mexico) Promatian of parks 100% Industriales S L ( 50%) -
GSB lata 2 § L. (50%}
INFRAESTRUCTURA ENERGETICA DEL QPDE’ Participaciones
NORTE SRL DE CV {Mexico) Promation of parks 100%  Industnales SL { 50%} -
GSBKappa 2SL ({50%)
INVERSIONES ¥ PROMOCIONES SOLARES ,
DEL CENTRO, SRL DE GV {(Mexco) OPDE" Participacones
Promaotion of parks 100% Industriales SL {50%) B
GSBlambda 25 L. (50%)
SOLEIL FOTOVOLTAICA, SAPI DE CV OFDE' Participactones
(México) Promoticn of parks 100%  Industnales SL {50%) -
Tordesillas Solar FV 11 5 L (50%)
INFRAESTRUCTURA  ENERGETICA DEL OPCE’ Parlicipaciones
OESTE,SAP| DECV {México) Promabon of parks 100% Industnales S L ( 50%) B
Tordesillas Solar FY 12 S L. (50%)
PROMOCIONES SOLARES MW, SA P! DE g;’ii:;g"é"ffﬁ)
CV {México} Promotion of parks 100% Tordesilzs Solar FY 135 L (50%) -
PROMOCION FOTOVOLTAICA VALLADOLID, Iongl?s%;ae‘;‘dspfrggﬂ
SAPI DECV (Méxco) Promotion of parks 100% Tordesillas Solar FV 14 SL -
(50%}
OPDE' Participaciones
SOLAR DE LA SIERRA, SAPI DE CV o el paks 100% Industnales S L. (50%) )

(México)

Tordesilas Selar FV 15 5 L. (50%)

63




A
opde

Grupo Opde

70

% par
Name and location Activity value Group company holder Auditor
ENERGIA FOTOVOLTAICA MIRAFLORES, OPDE" Perticpacones
SAPI DECV (Méxco) Promotion of parks fopn  IMdvstales SL (50%) ;
P Tordesilas SolarFV 16 S L
(50%)
OPDE BRASIL GENERACAD DE ENERGIA OPDE Folovoltaica SLU (9%}
LTD (Brazil} Promation of parks 100%  OPOE Investment Espafia S L -
{1%)
ALPHA SOLAR LIMITED (UK} Promatian of parks 100% gtDE Partigipaciones Indusinales R
BETA SOLAR LIMITED (UK) Fromoticn of 100% g}:_DE Parficipaciones Industnales N
GAMMA SCLAR LIMITED (UK) Promation of parks 100% ST_DE Participaciones Industnales )
DELTA SOLAR LIMITED (UK) Promation of parks 100% gEDE Parficipaciones Industrales }
EPSILON SOLAR LIMITED (UK) Promation of parks 100% giDE Participaciones Industriales }
10TA SOLAR LIMITED (UK} Promotion of parks 100% SEDE Paricipaciones Industhales .
KAPPA SOLAR LIVITED {UK) Promotion f parks o rDE Partepacones ndustrales
LAMBDA SOLAR LIMITED (UX) Pramation of parks 100% gTDE Pariicipaciones Industnales .
GAMMA SUN RENEWABLE ENERGY INDIA QPDE' Participaciones
Ltd {India} Prometion of parks 100%  Industnales S L. [99%) -
(SB Gamma 25L. (1%}
OMEGA SUN RENEWABLE ENERGY INDIA OPDE' Participaciones
Ltd (india) Promation of parks 100%  Industnales SL (99%) -
GSBOmega 2SL {1%)
GRUPQ SCLAR BASICOBETA 1S L (Span)  Promotion of parks 100% MECANIZADQS SCLARES S L -
MECASOLAR ESPANA SL [Spam) Promotion of parks 1008 MECANIZADOS SOLARES SL -
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DIREGTORS REPORT FOR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2014

1 Group financial situation and evolution of business

The consolidated net equity of Grupo OPDE (OPDE Investment Espafia, SL and subsidiares) {the Group)
at 2014 year end amounts to EUR 84 118 thousand, which i1s an increase of EUR 1919 thousand with
respect to the previous year

This increase 1s manly due o the profit for the year of EUR 5 684, offset by the distnbution of EUR 2 800
thousand in dvidends in 20t4 by the parent company of the Group, Opde Investment Espafia, S L and the
spin-off Proyeclos Integrales Solares, SL and its subsidianes {Grupo Proimnso) which accounted for approx
EUR 1 200 thousand

Worlung capital 15 positive and amounts to EUR 16 046 thousand at year end 2014 (27 544 at year end
2013)

Atter the exit of Grupo Promsa on Cetober 17, 2014 the Group activity focuses on the following business
design and manufacture of trackers, rendering of maintenance services for photovoltaic parks, construction
and promotion of solar parks and energy production

2 Profit for the year 2014

Profit for the year stands at EUR 5 684 thousand compared to a profit of EUR 9 902 thousand n 2013 The
decrease in profit \s manly due to the fact that 1n 2013 Rios & Ennque exited the shareholding of the Group
which meant the sale of three photovoltaic parks 1n ltaly and one in Spain (a total power of 7,4 MW)

Excluding this effect, the activity of the Group has increased in 2014 with respect to 2013, as in 2014 the
Group constructed and sold a photovoltaic park in the United Kingdom (Bishop 12 MW) as well as recording
a degree of completion of 87 7% for another two turn-key photovoliaic parks seld (Oaklands and Natewood),
also in the United Kingdom, which once completed will have a total power of 15 83 MW Finally, at the end of
2014 the Group had started construction of a fourth photovoltaic park 1n the United Kingdom Mount Mili (12
MW)

In addition, in 2014 the Group purchased the remaining shares in the ltalan company Opde Solare Sl. from
the two minonty shareholders The company indirectly holds the operating of 5 photovoltaic parks in the
south of ltaly, which have a total power of 4 78MW

Thus, at December 31, 2014 the Group owns operating photovoltaic parks which have a total power of 41
MW (36MW at December 31, 2013)

3 Risks, uncertainties and foreseeable evolution of business

The most significant nsks and uncertainties are related to the regulatory framework of the sector, which 1s
not favorable at all to the construction and promotion of parks in Spain, and to a lesser extent in Italy

Nevertheless, i Spain in June 2014 legislation which regulates and defines the tegal and econornic model
for electncal energy production using renewable energy sources as well as setting the remuneration
parameters for photovoltatc facilities was passed

The Group continues to look for business opportumties in other countries, in particular Mexico, the USA and
Chile as well developing and constructing in the United Kingdom

4 Environment

The Group complies with current environmental legislation
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5 Personnel
The Group ends the year with 65 employees (92 employees at the previous year end)

6 Other

The Group has not used significant resources in matters of research and development
The Company holds no treasury shares and has not traded in treasury shares dunng the year
Currently, the Group uses financial instruments two swaps In relation to the Project Finance of the

photovoltaic park In Abltas (Navarre) Therr amounts and effect are reflected in the Group s financial
statements

The Average Payment Peniod of the Group in 2014 has been 21 days, which 1s less than the 30 days legal
maximum

There has been ne signiicant event after year end 2014




